
FCMF

First Capital Mutual Fund

01

At First Capital Mutual Fund we would focus on creating wealth for 
unitholders, to conduct ourselves with dignity and the highest ethical 
standards, to contribute as a good corporate citizen to the society and 
also to provide a good working environment that will surely stimulate 
talent and reward hard work.

To be a leader among Mutual Funds of the country through prudent 
investments in diversified portfolio for sustained best financial 
results and continuing achieving maximum yield for the unitholders 
of First Capital Mutual Fund.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT

The Board of Directors of First Capital Investments Limited ("FCIL" or "Management Company") is pleased to present 
the annual report of First Capital Mutual Fund ("the Fund" or "FCMF" or "the Scheme") together with the annual audited 
financial statements of the Fund for the financial year ended 30 June 2017. 

EQUITY MARKET REVIEW

KSE-100 index posted a return of 23.24% during the Financial Year 2017 ("FY-17") as compared to 9.84% during the 
Financial Year 2016 ("FY-16") and closed the year at the level of 46,565 points.

The FY-17 commenced on a positive note in sync with the regional and global markets. During the first half of the year, 
the market remained positive with gains of 26.53% led by optimistic macroeconomic outlook on the back of kick-start of 
CPEC related investment in the energy & infrastructure projects, raising expectations of large portfolio inflows due to 
reclassification of PSX into MSCI Emerging Market index, sharp recovery in global oil prices due to OPEC deal to 
freeze the oil output in international market, approval of 12th & final trench by IMF board, growing expectation of global 
policy shift from monetary accommodation to fiscal stimulus to reinvigorate economic growth.

During the second half of the period under review the market remained volatile and plunged by 2.60% due to domestic 
political uncertainty on the back of court proceedings of Panama Leaks case and regulatory notices by SECP against the 
brokers. Further, descending global oil prices due to uncertainties on the extension of agreed supply cut by OPEC and 
non-OPEC producers and continuous supply addition by the US Shale producers led the decline in the oil & gas sector, 
rising geopolitical tensions with India and terrorist attacks in four provinces discouraged the investors.

Going forward, the market is expected to remain positive due to MSCI upgradation. Currently PSX-100 index is trading 
at approximately 25% discount to the P/E multiples of Emerging Market countries. Further, the market expect foreign 
investors to take interest in KSE with Pakistan being continually highlighted in foreign markets because of CPEC, 
healthy corporate earnings growth of 12%-15% for CY17; benign near-term inflation and interest rate outlook; 
improving economic growth prospects; and abundant local liquidity and other infrastructure projects. However, rising 
noise in the domestic politics, regional geopolitical fluidity, and global policy uncertainty may keep the volatility 
elevated.

FUND PERFORMANCE

During the period under review, the Fund has reported total comprehensive income of Rs. 33.115 million as compared to 
Rs. 14.015 million in the corresponding period last year. The comprehensive income has increased mainly on account of 
capital gain on sale of Investments which has increased to Rs. 46.725 million in FY-17 from Rs. 8.469 million in the 
corresponding period last year. The unrealized diminution on re-measurements of investments at fair value through 
profit has recorded at Rs. 23.873 million during FY-17 as compared to appreciation of Rs. 0.346 million in the same 
period last year. Total expenses of the Fund for the period under review increased to Rs. 8.691 million from Rs. 8.264 
million in the corresponding period last year. 
In terms of Net Asset Value ("NAV"), the NAV per unit of FCMF has increased from Rs. 11.7968 to Rs. 12.5359 (Ex-Div) 
while declaring dividend during the period under review. The benchmark of the Fund is KSE-100 index. The Fund has 
posted a return of 17.28%, as compared to its Benchmark's ("KSE-100 index") return of 23.24%, for the same period. 
Thus, the Fund has underperformed the Benchmark by 5.96%. The Fund underperformed the benchmark mainly on the 
back of over-weight in PKGS, POWER and zero-weight in THALL and NESTLE during the period under review. 
Moreover, the investment portfolio of the Fund includes certain scrips which are not included in KSE-100 index. The 
investment portfolio mix of the Fund is not aligned exactly with investment portfolio mix of its benchmark in order to 
generate better return.
During the period under review, the Pakistan Credit Rating Agency ("PACRA") has assigned "3 stars" 1 Year 
performance ranking to the Fund based on performance.
The Fund size of FCMF at the end of the period stood at Rs. 208.148 million as compared to Rs. 194.363 million as at 
June 30, 2016. The Fund size has increased mainly on account of reversal of Workers' Welfare Fund (WWF). The NAV 
per unit of the scheme has increased by Rs. 0.4941 due to reversal of WWF.  
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The asset allocation of FCMF as on June 30, 2017 is as follows:

 

The Management Company is continuously striving for the improvement in performance of the Fund. However, the 
objective is to focus on outperforming the market and consistent returns in the long run but does not conceptualize upon 
aggressive high risk strategies to give the best return in the short run. 

INCOME DISTRIBUTION

During the period under review, The Board of Directors of the Management Company, on 03 October 2017 has approved 
and declared final dividend distribution of Rs. 0.38 per unit (3.82% of the par value of Rs.10) for the year ended June 30, 
2017. This is in addition to the aggregated interim dividend distribution of Rs. 0.52 per unit (5.2% of the par value of 
Rs.10), for the year ended June 30, 2017 already distributed.

TAXATION

As the above distribution is more than 90% of the income earned during the year, excluding realized and unrealized 
capital gains on investments, the Fund is not subject to tax under Clause 99 of the Part I of the Second Schedule of the 
Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.

WORKERS' WELFARE FUND

The Finance Act, 2008 had introduced an amendment to the Workers' Welfare Fund Ordinance, 1971 ("WWF 
Ordinance") as a result of which it was construed that all CISs / mutual Funds whose income exceeded Rs. 0.5 million in 
tax year were brought within the scope of the WWF Ordinance, thus rendering them liable to pay contribution to WWF at 
the rate of two percent of their accounting or taxable income, which was higher.
 
The Finance Act, 2015 has excluded Mutual Funds and Collective Investment Schemes from the definition of' Industrial 
establishment' subject to WWF under WWF Ordinance, 1971. MUFAP has recommended that entire provision against 
WWF held by the CISs till June 30, 2016, to be reversed on January 12, 2017, based on legal opinion, as mentioned in 
Note 14.

The Scheme has reversed the provision against Workers' Welfare Fund's liability of Rs. 8,204,866 as per instructions 
received from MUFAP. The NAV per unit of the scheme has increased by Rs. 0.4941 per unit due to aforementioned 
adjustment. For details investors are advised to read Note 14 of the latest audited Financial Statements of the Scheme.

EXPENSE RATIO

The Scheme has also maintained Total expense ratio ("TER") 3.40% during the period under review, within the limit of 
4.00% prescribed under the Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008. 
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RISK DISCLOSURE

A description of the principal risks and uncertainties emanating from various factors include, but are not limited to:

1. Equity Risk - Companies issue equities, or stocks, to help finance their operations and future growth. The 
Company's performance outlook, market activity and the larger economic picture influence the price of a stock. 
Usually when the economy is expanding, the outlook for many companies is good and the stock prices may rise 
and vice versa.

2. Government Regulation Risk - Government policies or regulations are more prevalent in some securities and 
financial instruments than in others. The schemes that invest in such securities may be affected due to change in 
these regulations or policies, which directly or indirectly affect the structure of the security and/or in extreme 
cases a governmental or court order could restrain payment of capital, principal or income.

3. Credit Risk - Credit Risk arises from the inability of the issuers of the instruments or counterparties, to fulfill 
their obligations. The risk is generally limited to principal amount and accrued interest there on, if any.

4. Price Risk - Changing value of a security or a fund can be mostly due to stock/fund price fluctuations. Price Risk 
is the biggest risk faced by all investors and price risk can be minimized through diversification and efficient 
fund management.

5. Liquidity Risk - Liquidity risk arises when a transaction cannot be conducted at prevailing market prices due to 
insufficient market activity.

6. Market Risk - Market risk is the risk that the change in fair value or future cash flows of the financial instruments 
may fluctuate as a result of changes in market prices.

7. Settlement Risk - The risk that counterparty will not deliver the security or cash for a trade it has entered into, on 
time.

8. Events Risk - There may be adjustments to the performance of the Scheme due to events including but not 
limited to, natural calamities, market disruptions, mergers, nationalization, insolvency and changes in tax law.

9. Redemption Risk - There may be special circumstances in which the redemption of Units may be suspended or 
the redemption payment may not occur within six working days of receiving a request for redemption from the 
investor.

MANAGEMENT QUALITY RATING

During the period under review PACRA re-affirms the asset manager rating of FCIL at "AM4++" (AM Four Plus Plus). 
The rating reflects the Management Company's adequate capacity to manage risks inherent in the asset management 
business and the asset manager meets investment management industry standards and benchmarks.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board of Directors states that:

1. Financial Statements present fairly the state of affairs, the results of operations, cash flows and the changes in 
unit holder's Fund;

2. Proper books of accounts of the Fund have been maintained;
3. Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in the preparation of the financial statements 

and accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgments;
4. Relevant International Accounting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, provisions of the Non-Banking 

Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulation) Rules, 2003 & Non -Banking Finance Companies and 
Notified Entities Regulations, 2008, requirements of the Trust Deed and directives issued by the Securities and 
Exchange Commission of Pakistan, have been followed in the preparation of the financial statements;

5. The Directors are responsible to ensure that a system of sound internal control is established, which is 
effectively implemented, maintained and monitored at all levels within the fund;

6. There have been no significant doubts upon the Funds' ability to continue as going concern;
7. There has been no material departure from the best practices of corporate governance, as detailed in the Rule 

Book of Pakistan Stock Exchange except for non-compliances disclosed in the statement of compliance with 
the Code of Corporate Governance ("the Code");

8. Performance table of the Fund is Given on page 61 of the Annual Report;
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S. No.

1.
2.
3.
4.

Name of Director

Syed Nadeem Hussain
Miss Myra Husain Qureshi*
Mr. Asif Pervaiz
Mr. Jawad Saleem

Number of Board of
Directors meetings

held
6
6
6
6

Attended

6
3
6
2

Leave
granted

-
1
-
-

Meeting not
attended

-
-
-
-

09

First Capital Mutual Fund

S. No.

1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

Name of Director

Mr. Imran Hafeez
Syed Nadeem Hussain
Mr. Asif Pervaiz
Mr. Jawad Saleem
Miss Myra Husain Qureshi*

Number of Board of
Directors meetings

held
5
5
5
5
5

Attended

5
4
5
3
1

Leave
granted

-
1
-
-
-

Meeting not
attended

-
4th 
-

1st & 2nd 
2nd to 4th 

9. There is no statutory payments on account of taxes, duties, levies and charges outstanding other than already 
disclosed in the financial statements;

10. The statements as to the value of investments of Provident Fund is not applicable in the case of the Fund as 
employees post-employment benefits expenses are borne by the Management Company;

11. There have been no trades in the units of the Fund's carried out by the Directors, CEO, CFO, CIO and the 
Company Secretary and their spouse;

12. Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Management Company were held at least once in each quarter. During 
the year five meetings were held on 28 September 2016, 28 October 2016, 28 February 2017, 29 March 2017 
and 14 June 2017 respectively. Information in respect of attendance by directors in the meeting is given below;

* Retired on 14 February 2017
 
13. The Board has formed Human Resource and Remuneration Committee which comprises of the following 

members of the Board:

 Syed Nadeem Hussain
 Mr. Imran Hafeez
 Mr. Jawad Saleem 

 Meetings of the Committee were held on 30 September 2016 during the period from 01 July 2016 to 30 June 
2017.

14. Meeting of the Audit Committee of the Management Company were held once in each quarter During the year 
six meetings were held on 30 September 2016 (three meetings), 28 October 2016, 28 February 2017 and 29 
April 2017 respectively. Information in respect of attendance by directors in the meeting is given below:

*Retired on 14 February 2017

15. The details as required by the Code of Corporate Governance regarding the pattern of holding in Fund, is 
attached.

AUDITORS

The present auditors M/s. KPMG Taseer Hadi and Co., Chartered Accountants retire and offer themselves for 
reappointment. The Board of directors has recommended their appointment as auditors of the Fund for the year ending 
30 June 2018, at a fee to be mutually agreed.

FCMF
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DIRECTORS TRAINING PROGRAM

The Board arranged no training program for its directors during the year. However, as on June 30, 2016 half of Directors 
on the Board have certifications under the Directors' Training Program offered by institutions that meet the criteria 
specified by the SECP.

ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Mr. Imran Hafeez, Syed Nadeem Hussain, Mr. Jawad Saleem and Mr. Asif Pervaiz were elected in the Extraordinary 
General Meeting held on 14 February 2017, and Mr. Imran Hafeez was also appointed as CEO of the Management 
Company for the next term of three years.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The board of directors of the Management Company re-constitutes the audit committee comprising three members 
namely Syed Nadeem Hussain, Mr. Jawad Saleem and Mr. Asif Pervaiz, Mr. Jawad Saleem was also appointed as 
Chairman of the Committee.

ACKNOWLEDGMENT

We are thankful to our valued investors who have placed their confidence in us. The Board is also thankful to Securities & 
Exchange Commission of Pakistan, the Trustee (Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited) and the 
management of Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited for their continued guidance and support. The Directors also 
appreciate the efforts put in by the management team.

FCMF

         For and on behalf of the Board

Asif Pervaiz        Imran Hafeez
Director                    Chief Executive Officer / Director   

Lahore: 
03 October 2017 
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FUND MANAGER'S REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2017

First Capital Mutual Fund

First Capital Mutual Fund ("FCMF" or "the Fund") is an open end equity fund.

Investment Objective of the Fund

The objective of FCMF is to augment wealth of investors through investments geared toward securing maximum returns 

whilst simultaneously offsetting resulting risks through efficient diversification across sectors with low correlation 

amongst them. The management of the Fund is continuously striving towards achieving this objective.

Benchmark

The Benchmark of the Fund is KSE-100 Index.

Fund Performance Review

During the period under review, the Fund has reported total comprehensive income of Rs. 33.115 million as compared to 

Rs. 14.015 million in the corresponding period last year. The comprehensive income has increased mainly on account of 

capital gain on sale of Investments which has increased to Rs. 46.725 million in FY-17 from Rs. 8.469 million in the 

corresponding period last year. The unrealized diminution on re-measurements of investments at fair value through 

profit has recorded at Rs. 23.873 million during FY-17 as compared to appreciation of Rs. 0.346 million in the same 

period last year. Total expenses of the Fund for the period under review increased to Rs. 8.691 million from Rs. 8.264 

million in the corresponding period last year. 

In terms of Net Asset Value ("NAV"), the NAV per unit of FCMF has increased from Rs. 11.7968 to Rs. 12.5359 (Ex-Div) 

while declaring dividend during the period under review. The benchmark of the Fund is KSE-100 index. The Fund has 

posted a return of 17.28%, as compared to its Benchmark's ("KSE-100 index") return of 23.24%, for the same period. 

Thus, the Fund has underperformed the Benchmark by 5.96%. The Fund underperformed the benchmark mainly on the 

back of over-weight in PKGS, POWER and zero-weight in THALL and NESTLE during the period under review. 

Moreover, the investment portfolio of the Fund includes certain scrips which are not included in KSE-100 index. The 

investment portfolio mix of the Fund is not aligned exactly with investment portfolio mix of its benchmark in order to 

generate better return.

During the period under review, the Pakistan Credit Rating Agency ("PACRA") has assigned "3 stars" 1 Year 

performance ranking to the Fund based on performance.

The Fund size of FCMF at the end of the period stood at Rs. 208.148 million as compared to Rs. 194.363 million as at 

June 30, 2016. The Fund size has increased mainly on account of reversal of Workers' Welfare Fund (WWF). The NAV 

per unit of the scheme has increased by Rs. 0.4941 due to reversal of WWF.  
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FCMF Performance vs. KSE-100 Index

 

During the period, the Fund adjusted its exposure in equities with focus on diversification in different sectors, as per 
market conditions in order to generate better return.

Stock Market Review

KSE-100 index posted a return of 23.24% during the Financial Year 2017 ("FY-17") as compared to 9.84% during the 
Financial Year 2016 ("FY-16") and closed the year at the level of 46,565 points.

The FY-17 commenced on a positive note in sync with the regional and global markets. During the first half of the year, 
the market remained positive with gains of 26.53% led by optimistic macroeconomic outlook on the back of kick-start of 
CPEC related investment in the energy & infrastructure projects, raising expectations of large portfolio inflows due to 
reclassification of PSX into MSCI Emerging Market index, sharp recovery in global oil prices due to OPEC deal to 
freeze the oil output in international market, approval of 12th & final trench by IMF board, growing expectation of global 
policy shift from monetary accommodation to fiscal stimulus to reinvigorate economic growth.

During the second half of the period under review the market remained volatile and plunged by 2.60% due to domestic 
political uncertainty on the back of court proceedings of Panama Leaks case and regulatory notices by SECP against the 
brokers. Further, descending global oil prices due to uncertainties on the extension of agreed supply cut by OPEC and 
non-OPEC producers and continuous supply addition by the US Shale producers led the decline in the oil & gas sector, 
rising geopolitical tensions with India and terrorist attacks in four provinces discouraged the investors.

Going forward, the market is expected to remain positive due to MSCI upgradation. Currently PSX-100 index is trading 
at approximately 25% discount to the P/E multiples of Emerging Market countries. Further, the market expect foreign 
investors to take interest in KSE with Pakistan being continually highlighted in foreign markets because of CPEC, 
healthy corporate earnings growth of 12%-15% for CY17; benign near-term inflation and interest rate outlook; 
improving economic growth prospects; and abundant local liquidity and other infrastructure projects. However, rising 
noise in the domestic politics, regional geopolitical fluidity, and global policy uncertainty may keep the volatility 
elevated.
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Asset Allocation of the Fund (% of total assets)

Pattern of Unit Holders of the FCMF as on June 30, 2017

The pattern of Unit Holders of the FCMF as on June 30, 2017 is attached.

WORKERS' WELFARE FUND

The Scheme has reversed the provision against Workers' Welfare Fund's liability of Rs. 8,204,866 as per instructions 
received from MUFAP. The NAV per unit of the scheme has increased by Rs. 0.4941 per unit due to aforementioned 
adjustment. For details investors are advised to read Note 14 of the latest audited Financial Statements of the Scheme.

Disclosures

Ÿ There have been no significant changes in the state of affairs of the Fund during the period under review and up 
till the date of fund manager report, not otherwise disclosed in the financial statements. 

Ÿ During the period under review, there were no circumstances that materially affected any interests of the unit 
holders, except the Scheme has reversed the provision against Workers' Welfare Fund's liability of Rs. 8,204,866 
as per instructions received from MUFAP. 

Ÿ The Management Company or its delegates did not receive any soft commission (i.e. goods and services) from its 
broker(s)/dealers(s) by virtue of transactions conducted by the Fund. 

Asset Category    30-June-2017   30-June-2016

Equities     92.53% 89.15%

Treasury Bills    5.30% 8.23%

Bank Balance    1.51% 2.10%

Others including receivables  0.66% 0.51%

Total     100.00% 100.00%
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STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE WITH THE CODE OF CORPORATE 
GOVERNANCE ("CCG" or "the Code)

First Capital Mutual Fund, Year ended June 30, 2017

This statement is being presented to comply with the Code of Corporate Governance (the "Code") contained in sub 
clause 5.19 of Chapter 5, of listing regulations of Pakistan Stock Exchange for the purpose of establishing a framework 
of good governance, whereby a listed entity is managed in compliance with the best practices of corporate governance.

The Board of Directors ("the Board") of First Capital Investments Limited, ("the Asset Management Company") an un-
listed public company, manages the affairs of First Capital Mutual Fund ("the Fund"). The Fund being a unit trust open 
ended scheme does not have its own board of Directors. 

The Management Company has applied the principles contained in the CCG, in the following manner:

1. The Management Company encourages representation of independent non-executive directors and Directors 
representing minority interests on its Board of Directors. The Board was appointed on 14 February 2017 
through election held in Extra Ordinary General Meeting for the term of next three years. At present, the Board 
includes:

The independent directors meet the criteria of independence under clause 5.19.1(b) of the CCG.

2. The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven listed companies, 
including the Management Company.

3. All the resident directors of the Management Company are registered as taxpayers and none of them has 
defaulted in payment of any loan to a banking company, a DFI or an NBFI or, being a Broker of Stock 
Exchange, has been declared as defaulter by that stock exchange.

4. There is no any casual vacancy occurring during the year. 

5. The Management Company has prepared a "Code of Conduct" and has ensured that appropriate steps have 
been taken to disseminate it throughout the Asset Management Company and the Fund along with its 
supporting policies and procedures.

6. The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant policies of the 
Fund. A complete record of particulars of significant policies along with the dates on which they were approved 
or amended has been maintained.

7. All the powers of the board have been duly exercised and decisions on material transactions, including 
appointment and determination of remuneration and terms and conditions of employment of the CEO and other 
non-executive directors have been taken by the board/shareholders.

8. The meetings of the board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director elected by the 
board for this purpose. The board met at least once in every quarter. Written notices of the board meetings, 
along with agenda and working papers were circulated at least seven days before the meetings. The minutes of 
the meetings were appropriately recorded and circulated.

Category      Names
Executive Director CEO/Director   Imran Hafeez
Independent Directors     Syed Nadeem Hussain 
       Jawad Saleem
Non-Executive Director     Asif Pervaiz

FCMF



9. The Board ensures arrangement of orientation courses for its directors to apprise them of their duties and 
responsibilities. Board had previously arranged Corporate Governance Leadership Skills (CGLS) training 
programs for its directors. Three directors have obtained certification of CGLS as required under the clause 
5.19.7 of the Code and are familiarized themselves on their responsibilities with the Code.  

10. No new appointment of CFO, Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit has occurred during the year.

11. The director's report for this year has been prepared in compliance with the requirements of the Code and fully 
describes the salient matters required to be disclosed.

12. The financial statements of the Fund were duly endorsed by CEO and CFO before approval of the board.

13. The directors, CEO and executives do not hold any interest in the units of the Fund other than those disclosed in 
the Directors Report, pattern of unit holding and notes to the financial statements.

14. The Management Company has complied with all the applicable corporate and financial reporting 
requirements of the Code.

15. The board has formed an audit committee. It comprises of three members, all of whom are non-executive 
directors of the Management Company, while the Chairman is an independent director.

16. The meetings of the audit committee were held at least once every quarter prior to approval of interim and final 
results of the Fund as required by the Code. The terms of reference of the audit committee have been formed 
and advised to the committee for compliance.

17. The board of directors of Asset Management Company of the Fund has formed a Human Resource and 
Remuneration Committee. It comprises of three members, including CEO and the chairman of the committee 
is a Non-Executive director.

18. The board of directors of Asset Management Company of the Fund has set up an effective internal audit 
function that is considered suitably qualified and experienced for the purpose and is conversant with the 
policies and procedures of the Fund.

19. The statutory auditors of the Fund have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating under the 
quality control review program of the ICAP, that they or any of the partners of the firm, their spouses and minor 
children do not hold units of the Fund and that the firm and all its partners are in compliance with International 
Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by ICAP.

20. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other services 
except in accordance with the listing regulations and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC 
guidelines in this regard.

21. The 'closed period' prior to the announcement of interim/final results and business decisions which may 
materially was determined and intimated to directors, employees and stock exchanges.

22. Material/price sensitive information has been disseminated among all market participants at once through 
stock exchange(s).

23. The company has complied with the requirements relating to maintenance of register of persons having access 
to inside information by designated senior management officer in a timely manner and maintained proper 
record including basis for inclusion or exclusion of names of persons from the said list.

24. We confirm that all other material principles enshrined in the Code have been complied with.
 
          For and on behalf of the Board

Lahore         Imran Hafeez
03 October 2017        Chief Executive Officer/Director21
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Review Report to the Unit Holders on the Statement of Compliance with the 
Code of Corporate Governance

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the best practices contained in the Code of Corporate 
Governance ("the Code") prepared by the Board of Directors of First Capital Management Limited ("the Management 
Company") of First Capital Mutual Fund ("the Fund") for the year ended 30 June 2017 to comply with requirements of 
clause 5.19 of the Rule Book of Pakistan Stock Exchange, where the Fund is listed.

The responsibility for compliance with the Code is that of the Board of directors of the Management Company of the 
Fund. Our responsibility is to review, to the extent where such compliance can be objectively verified, whether the 
Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Managements Company's compliance with the provisions of the Code 
and report if it does not and to highlight any non- compliance with the requirements of the Code. A review is limited 
primarily to inquiries of Management Company's personnel and review of various documents prepared by the 
Management Company to comply with the Code.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting and internal 
control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not required to consider 
whether the Board of Directors' statement on internal controls covers all the risk and controls, the Management 
Company's corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Code requires the Management Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of the 
Audit committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and approval its related party transactions 
distinguishing between transactions carried out on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm's length transactions and 
transactions which are not executed at arm's length price and recording proper justification for using such alternate 
pricing mechanism. We are only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval 
of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee. We have not 
carried out any procedures to determine whether the related party transactions were undertaken at arm's length price or 
not.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of Compliance does 
not appropriately reflect the Fund's compliance, in all material respects, with the best practices contained in the Code as 
applicable to the Fund for the year ended 30 June 2017.

Date: 03 October 2017       KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.
         Chartered Accountants
Lahore         Kamran Iqbal Yousafi
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First Capital Mutual Fund

Independent Auditors' Report to the Unit Holders

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of First Capital Mutual Fund ("the Fund"), which comprise the 
statement of assets and liabilities as at 30 June 2017, and the related income statement, statement of comprehensive 
income, distribution statement, cash flow statement, statement of movement in Unit Holders' Fund for the year ended 30 
June 2017, and a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory notes.

Management Company's responsibility for the financial statements

Management Company of the Fund is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with the requirements of the approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan and for such internal 
control as Management Company determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors' responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in 
accordance with auditing standards as applicable in Pakistan. Those standards require that we comply with ethical 
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are 
free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The procedures selected depend on our judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, we consider 
internal control relevant to the Fund's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit 
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the Fund's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies 
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall 
presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements give a true and fair view of the state of the Fund's affairs as at 30 June 2017, and of 
its financial performance, cash flows and transactions for the year then ended in accordance with approved accounting 
standards as applicable in Pakistan.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

In our opinion, the financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the relevant provisions of the Non-
Banking Finance Companies (Establishment and Regulation Rules, 2003) and Non-Banking Finance Companies and 
Notified Entities Regulations, 2008.

Date: 03 October 2017       KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co.
         Chartered Accountants
Lahore         Kamran Iqbal Yousafi
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First Capital Mutual Fund

Statement of Assets and Liabilities

As at 30 June 2017

Rupees
20162017

Note

Assets
          
Bank balances       4 3,418,018 4,570,869 
Investments      5  221,458,116   211,865,587 
Dividend and profit receivable - unsecured, considered good 6  362,597   382,707 
Advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables 7  1,108,193   724,075 
Total Assets       226,346,924   217,543,238 
          
Liabilities
          
Payable to First Capital Investment Limited - Management Company
 - against remuneration    8 5,027,607 4,080,426 
 - other payables     9  245,375  -   
Remuneration payable to Central Depository Company 
 of Pakistan Limited - Trustee    10 65,013   65,410 
Annual fee payable to Securities and Exchange  
Commission of Pakistan     11  207,043   190,561 
Accrued expenses and other liabilities   12  982,302  842,133 
Unclaimed dividend     13  11,672,005   9,796,624 
Provision for Workers' Welfare Fund   14  -     8,204,866 
Total Liabilities        18,199,345   23,180,020 
          
Contingencies and commitments    15 

Net Assets       208,147,579   194,363,218 
          
Unit holders' fund (as per statement attached)   208,147,579   194,363,218 
          
        
          
Number of units in issue     16  16,604,097   16,475,941 
          

          
Net asset value per unit (Face value per unit Rs. 10/-)   12.5359   11.7968 
          
The annexed notes from 1 to 32 form an integral part of these financial statements.

Rupees

For First Capital Investments Limited
(Management Company)

Chief Executive Director

 (Number of Units)   
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First Capital Mutual Fund

INCOME STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

Rupees
20162017

Note

For First Capital Investments Limited
(Management Company)

Chief Executive Director

Income      
      
Capital gain on sale of 'fair value through profit or loss investments' - net   46,725,250   8,468,884 
Dividend income from 'fair value through profit or loss investments'   8,614,466   11,828,972 
Income from government securities      864,332   934,351 
Profit on bank deposits       884,508   436,853 
Unrealised (diminution) / appreciation on re-measurement of investments -       
 at fair value through profit or loss - net   5.3  (23,873,197)  346,031 
Total income        33,215,359  22,015,091 
      
Expenses      
      
Remuneration to the Management Company   8.1 4,358,786 4,011,804
Punjab Sales tax on remuneration to the  
Management Company     8.2 697,406 744,591
Federal Excise Duty on remuneration to the      
 Management Company     8.3  -    641,889
Remuneration to the Trustee    10.1 700,000 700,000
Sindh Sales tax on remuneration to the Trustee  10.2 91,000 98,000
Annual fee - Securities and  Exchange       
Commission of Pakistan     11 207,043 190,561
Securities transaction costs    17 1,136,229 381,900
Auditors' remuneration     18 999,200 1,143,750
Accounting & Operational charges     217,940  -   
Sindh Sales Tax on Accounting & Operational charges  17,435  -   
Annual listing fee - Pakistan Stock Exchange   30,000 30,000
Legal and other professional fees      -    77,073
Fund's ranking fee      140,360 140,360
Printing, postage and other charges     76,623 93,107
Bank charges       19,140 10,810
Total expenses       8,691,162 8,263,845
      
Net income from operating activities     24,524,197  13,751,246 
      
Element of income / (loss) and capital gains / (loss) included in       
 prices of units issued less those in the units redeemed - net   385,789   264,062 
      
Reversal of provision for Workers' Welfare Fund  14  8,204,866   -   
Net income for the year before taxation     33,114,852   14,015,308 
  
Taxation      19  -    -   
Net income for the year after taxation     33,114,852   14,015,308 
      
Earnings per unit      21    
      
The annexed notes from 1 to 32 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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First Capital Mutual Fund

Statement Of Comprehensive Income

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

Rupees
20162017

For First Capital Investments Limited
(Management Company)

Chief Executive Director

Net income for the year after taxation     33,114,852   14,015,308 
      
Other comprehensive income for the year     -      -   
      
Total comprehensive income for the year     33,114,852   14,015,308 
      
      
      
      
The annexed notes 1 to 32 form an integral part of these financial statements.      
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First Capital Mutual Fund

DISTRIBUTION STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

Rupees
20162017

For First Capital Investments Limited
(Management Company)

Undistributed income brought forward represented by:      
 - Realised income       32,222,633  28,657,337 
 - Unrealised income      14,880,112   21,294,331 
         47,102,745   49,951,668 
      
Distribution:      
      
Final cash dividend distributed for the year ended 30 June 2016      
 at the rate of Rs. 0.76 per unit on 30 September 2016   (12,323,544)  (16,864,231)
      
Interim cash dividend  distributed for the half year ended 31 December 2016      
 at the rate of Rs. 0.52 per unit on 28 February 2017   (8,518,780) -   
     
Net income for the year after taxation     33,114,852   14,015,308 
      
Undistributed income carried forward     59,375,273   47,102,745 
 Represented by:      
 - Realised income        84,506,217   32,222,633 
 - Unrealised income / (loss)      (25,130,945)  14,880,112 
         59,375,272   47,102,745 
      
The annexed notes from 1 to 32 form an integral part of these financial statements.      
      

Chief Executive Director
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First Capital Mutual Fund

CASH FLOW STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017

Rupees
20162017

For First Capital Investments Limited
(Management Company)

Chief Executive Director

Cash flows from operating activities

Net income for the year before taxation   33,114,852 14,015,308 

Adjustments for:          

Element of income and capital gains included in prices of units           

 issued less those in the units redeemed - net  (385,789)  (264,062)

Provision for Workers' Welfare Fund   (8,204,866) -   

Unrealised appreciation on re-measurement of investments -           

 at fair value through profit or loss - net   23,873,197 (346,031)

        48,397,394   13,405,215 

(Increase) / decrease in assets:          

 Investments - net      (33,465,726)  62,490,507 

 Dividend and profit receivable - unsecured, considered good 20,110   593,248 

 Receivable against sale of investments    -     7,874,333 

 Advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables  (410,741)  (90,828)

        (33,856,357)  70,867,260 

Increase / (decrease) in liabilities:          

 Remuneration payable to Management Company   947,181   (1,426,664)

 Other payable to Management Company   245,375  -   

 Remuneration payable to Trustee    (397)  8,299 

 Annual fee payable to SECP     16,482   (96,394)

 Payable against Purchase of Investments  -     (12,942)

 Unclaimed dividend      1,875,380   3,779,536 

 Accrued expenses and other liabilities    166,792   119,160 

        3,250,813   2,370,995 

Net cash generated from operating activities   17,791,850   86,643,470 

          

Cash flows from financing activities          

          

Receipts against issuance of units     9,618,734   2,568,579 

Cash payout against distribution of interim cash dividend  (8,518,780) -   

Cash payout against distribution of final cash dividend  (12,323,544)  (16,864,231)

Payments made against redemption of units     (7,721,111)  (69,324,587)

Net cash used in financing activities     (18,944,701)  (83,620,239)

Net (decrease) / increase in cash and cash equivalents during the year   (1,152,851)  3,023,231 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year   4,570,869  1,547,638 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year    3,418,018  4,570,869 

          

The annexed notes from 1 to 32 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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Statement Of Movement In
Unit Holders’ Fund 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017
Rupees

20162017

For First Capital Investments Limited
(Management Company)

Chief Executive Director

Net assets at the beginning of the year    194,363,218  264,232,211 

        

Amount received on issue of 698,716 units (2016: 221,093 units)  9,618,733   2,568,579 

Amount paid on redemption of 570,560 units (2016: 5,820,236 units)  (7,721,111) (69,324,587)

       1,897,622  (66,756,008)

Element of (income) and capital (gains) included in prices of units        

 issued less those in the units redeemed - net  (385,789)  (264,062)

        

        

Total comprehensive income for the year:        

        

Capital gain on sale of investments - net   46,725,250   8,468,884 

Unrealised (diminution) / appreciation on re-measurement of investments -         

 at fair value through profit or loss - net    (23,873,197)  346,031 

Other net income for the year     10,262,799  5,200,393 

        33,114,852  14,015,308 

Distribution made:        

Interim cash dividend  distributed for the half year ended 31 December 2016        

 at the rate of Rs. 0.52 per unit on 28 February 2017  (8,518,780) -   

Final cash dividend distributed for the year ended 30 June 2016        

 at the rate of Rs. 0.76 per unit on 30 September 2016  (12,323,544)  (16,864,231)

Net total comprehensive income less distribution for the year  12,272,528  (2,848,923)

        

Net assets at the end of the year     208,147,579  194,363,218 

        

Net assets value per unit at the beginning of the year - rupees 11.7968 8.9354

        

Net assets value per unit at the end of the year - rupees 12.5359 11.7968

        

The annexed notes from 1 to 32 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017
1 Reporting entity             
              
 1.1 First Capital Mutual Fund ("the Fund") was constituted by virtue of a scheme of arrangement for conversion 

of First Capital Mutual Fund Limited into an Open end scheme under a Trust deed executed between First 
Capital Investment Limited ("FCIL") as Management Company and Central Depository Company of 
Pakistan Limited ("CDC") as Trustee. The trust deed was executed on 06 August 2013 after being approved 
by the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan ("SECP") on 30 July 2013 in accordance with the 
provision of Non-Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulation, 2008 ("the NBFC 
Regulations").             

              
 1.2 The Management Company has been licensed by the SECP to act as an Asset Management Company under 

the Non Banking Finance Companies ("Establishment and Regulations") Rules, 2003 ("the NBFC Rules") 
through a certificate of registration issued by the SECP. The registered office of the Management Company is 
situated at 2nd and 3rd floor, Pace Shopping Mall, Fortress Stadium, Lahore, Pakistan. The Fund is an Open 
end equity scheme and offers units for public subscription on a continuous basis. The units are transferable 
and can be redeemed by submitting them into the Fund.            

              
 1.3 The Fund has been formed to augment the wealth of investors through investments geared towards securing 

maximum returns whilst simultaneously offsetting resultant risks through efficient diversification across 
sectors with low correlation amongst them. The Fund shall invest its assets in high quality dividend yielding 
stocks. While the remaining assets shall be invested in cash and / or near cash instruments.             

              
 1.4 Title of the assets of the Fund is held in the name of Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited 

("CDC") as trustee of the Fund and the Fund is listed on was previously listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange 
("PSX").             

              
 1.5 Pakistan Credit Rating Agency Limited ("PACRA") has assigned management quality rating of AM4++ to 

the Management Company and has assigned  "3 Star" to the Fund on 30 November 2016 and 07 December 
2016 respectively.            

              
2 Basis of preparation             
              
 2.1 Statement of compliance            
              
  These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the approved accounting standards as 

applicable in Pakistan. Approved accounting standards comprise of such International Financial Reporting 
Standards ("IFRSs") issued by the International Accounting Standards Board ("IASB") as are notified under 
the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 ("the Ordinance"), provisions of and directives issued under the 
Ordinance, the requirements of the Trust Deed, the NBFC Rules, the NBFC Regulations and the directives 
issued by the SECP. Wherever the requirements of the Trust Deed, the NBFC Rules, the NBFC Regulations, 
the provisions or directives of the Ordinance, or directives issued by the SECP differ with the requirements of 
IFRSs, the requirements of the Trust Deed, the provisions or directives of the Ordinance, the NBFC Rules, 
the NBFC Regulations or the directives issued by the SECP shall prevail.            

              
  The Companies Act, 2017 was enacted on 30 May 2017 and is applicable with immediate effect. The 

Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan through press release and vide circular no. 17 of 2017 
dated 20 July 2017 has decided that all the companies whose financial year, including quarterly and other 
interim period, closes on or before 30 June 2017, shall prepare their financial statements, including interim 
financial statements, in accordance with the provisions of the repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984. The new 
requirements of the Companies Act, 2017 shall be applicable to the companies having their financial year 
closure after 30 June 2017.            
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 2.2 Basis of measurement            
              
  These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except that certain 

financial assets have been carried at fair value in accordance with the requirements of International 
Accounting Standard ("IAS") 39: 'Financial Instruments Recognition and Measurement.'            

              
 2.3 Critical accounting estimates and judgments            
              
  The preparation of financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards, as applicable in 

Pakistan, requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of 
policies and reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. The estimates and associated 
assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable 
under the circumstances, the results of which form the basis of making the judgments about the carrying 
values of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from 
these estimates.            

              
  The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on a continuous basis. Revisions to accounting 

estimates are recognized in the period in which estimates are revised if the revision affects only that period, or 
in the period of the revision and future periods affected.            

              
  Judgments made by the management in the application of approved accounting standards that have 

significant effect on the financial statements and estimates with a significant risk of material adjustment in the 
next year are as follows:            

              
  - Note 3.1 - Classification of investments            
  - Note 3.1.2 & 3.1.3 - Valuation of investments           
  - Note 3.1.4 - Impairment of financial assets           
  - Note 3.4 - Provisions and contingencies           
  - Note 3.5 - Taxation           
  - Note 3.8 - Element of income / (loss) and capital gains / (losses)            
  included in prices of units issued less those in units redeemed - net           
  - Note 8 - Federal Excise Duty on Management Company's remuneration           
  - Note 13 - Provision for Workers' Welfare Fund           
              
 2.4 Standards, interpretations and amendments to published approved accounting standards            
              
  The following standards, amendments and interpretations of approved accounting standards will be effective 

for accounting periods beginning on or after 01 July 2017:            
              
  - Amendments to IAS 12 ‘Income Taxes’ are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 

2017. The amendments clarify that the existence of a deductible temporary difference depends solely on 
a comparison of the carrying amount of an asset and its tax base at the end of the reporting period, and is 
not affected by possible future changes in the carrying amount or expected manner of recovery of the 
asset. The amendments further clarify that when calculating deferred tax asset in respect of insufficient 
taxable temporary differences, the future taxable profit excludes tax deductions resulting from the 
reversal of those deductible temporary differences. The amendments are not likely to have an impact on 
Company’s financial statements.           

              

  - Amendments to IAS 7 ‘Statement of Cash Flows’ are part of IASB’s broader disclosure initiative and are 
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2017. The amendments require disclosures 
that enable users of financial statements to evaluate changes in liabilities arising from financing 
activities, including both changes arising from cash flow and non-cash changes.           

              
  - Amendments to IFRS 2 - Share-based Payment clarify the accounting for certain types of arrangements 
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and are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018. The amendments cover three 
accounting areas (a) measurement of cash-settled share-based payments; (b) classification of share-
based payments settled net of tax withholdings; and (c) accounting for a modification of a share-based 
payment from cash-settled to equity-settled. The new requirements could affect the classification and/or 
measurement of these arrangements and potentially the timing and amount of expense recognized for 
new and outstanding awards. The amendments are not likely to have an impact on Company’s financial 
statements.           

              
  - Transfers of Investment Property (Amendments to IAS 40 ‘Investment Property’  -effective for annual 

periods beginning on or after 1 January 2018) clarifies that an entity shall transfer a property to, or from, 
investment property when, and only when there is a change in use. A change in use occurs when the 
property meets, or ceases to meet, the definition of investment property and there is evidence of the 
change in use. In isolation, a change in management's intentions for the use of a property does not 
provide evidence of a change in use. The amendments are not likely to have an impact on Company’s 
financial statements.           

              
  Annual improvements to IFRS standards 2014-2016 cycle. The new cycle of improvements addresses 

improvements to following approved accounting standards:            
              
  - Amendments to IFRS 12 ‘Disclosure of Interests in Other Entities’ (effective for annual periods 

beginning on or after 1 January 2017) clarify that the requirements of IFRS 12 apply to an entity’s 
interests that are classified as held for sale or discontinued operations in accordance with IFRS 5 – ‘Non-
current Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations’. The amendments are not likely to have an 
impact on Company’s financial statements.           

              
  - Amendments to IAS 28 ‘Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures’ (effective for annual periods 

beginning on or after 1 January 2018) clarifies that a venture capital organization and other similar 
entities may elect to measure investments in associates and joint ventures at fair value through profit or 
loss, for each associate or joint venture separately at the time of initial recognition of investment. 
Furthermore, similar election is available to non-investment entity that has an interest in an associate or 
joint venture that is an investment entity, when applying the equity method, to retain the fair value 
measurement applied by that investment entity associate or joint venture to the investment entity 
associate's or joint venture's interests in subsidiaries. This election is made separately for each 
investment entity associate or joint venture. The amendments are not likely to have an impact on 
Company’s financial statements.           

              
  - IFRIC 22 ‘Foreign Currency Transactions and Advance Consideration’ (effective for annual periods 

beginning on or after 1 January 2018) clarifies which date should be used for translation when a foreign 
currency transaction involves payment or receipt in advance of the item it relates to. The related item is 
translated using the exchange rate on the date the advance foreign currency is received or paid and the 
prepayment or deferred income is recognized. The date of the transaction for the purpose of determining 
the exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the related asset, expense or income (or part of it) would 
remain the date on which receipt of payment from advance consideration was recognized. If there are 
multiple payments or receipts in advance, the entity shall determine a date of the transaction for each 
payment or receipt of advance consideration.           

 
  - IFRIC 23 ‘Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments’ (effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 

January 2019) clarifies the accounting for income tax when there is uncertainty over income tax 
treatments under IAS 12. The interpretation requires the uncertainty over tax treatment be reflected in the 
measurement of current and deferred tax.           

              
  The above amendments are not likely to have any impact on these financial statements.            
              
  - As disclosed in note 2.1.2, the new requirements of the Companies Act, 2017, shall be applicable to the 

financial statements issued on or after 30 June 2017. The Act included mutual funds in Third Schedule, 
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accordingly certain additional requirements / disclosures in Fifth Schedule to the Companies Act, 2017 
are also applicable to the financial statements of mutual funds. Significant disclosures / requirements, 
which are relevant to the funds includes but not limited to: name of associated companies or related 
parties or undertakings along with the basis of relationship describing common directorship and/or 
percentage of shareholding; summary of significant transactions and events that have affected the 
financial position and performance during the year, etc.           

  - SECP through SRO 756(I)/2017 dated 03 August 2017 has made certain amendments in NBFCs and 
Notified Entities Regulations, 2008. The amendments require additional disclosures and recording of 
element of income / loss included in price of unit issued or redeemed in Statement of Movements in 
Reserves or Unit holders’ Fund instead of Income Statement. The SRO also deleted ‘Distribution 
Statement’ and its contents along with certain additional break-ups and disclosures to be included on the 
face of ‘Income Statement’ and ‘Statement of Movements in Reserves or Unit holders’ Fund’.             

   
  - Further, new amendments changed the definition of accounting income in regulation (63) sub-regulation 

(I) which is now to be determined after excluding the amount of element of income / loss relating to the 
redemption of units. This change will be applied prospectively and may affect the Net Asset Value per 
unit of the Fund in future.           

 
 2.5 Functional and presentation currency            
              
   These financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees ("Rs."), which is the Funds' functional and 

presentation currency. All financial information has been rounded to the nearest rupee, except when 
otherwise indicated.            

              
3  Summary of significant accounting policies              
              
   The accounting policies and methods of computation followed in the preparation of these financial 

statements are consistent with those applied in the previous year.             
              
 3.1 Financial assets            
              
   The Fund classifies its financial assets into the following categories: 'loans and receivables', 'at fair value 

through profit or loss' ,'held to maturity' and 'available for sale'. The classification depends on the 
purpose for which the financial assets were acquired. Management determines the classification of its 
financial assets at initial recognition and re-evaluates this classification on a regular basis.            

              
  (a) Loans and receivables           
              
   Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are 

not quoted in an active market.           
              
  (b) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss           
              
   Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are financial assets held for trading and financial assets 

designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. A financial asset is classified as 
held for trading if acquired principally for the purpose of selling in the short term. Assets in this category 
are classified as current assets.           

              
  (c) Held to maturity           
              
   Held to maturity are financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity, where 

management has the intention and ability to hold till maturity are carried at amortised cost.           
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  (d) Available for sale financial assets           
              
  Available for sale financial assets are non-derivative financial assets that are either designated in this category 

or not classified in any of the above categories. They are included in non-current assets unless management 
intends to dispose of the investments within twelve months from the balance sheet date. Available-for-sale 
financial assets are classified as short term investments in the balance sheet.           

              
 3.1.1 Trade date accounting            
              
  All financial assets are recognized at the time when the Fund becomes a party to the contractual provisions of 

the instrument. Regular purchases and sales of investments are recognised at trade date i.e. the date on which 
the Fund commits to purchase or sell the asset.            

              
 3.1.2 Initial recognition and measurement            
              
  Financial assets are initially recognised at fair value plus transaction costs for all financial assets not carried at 

fair value through profit or loss. Financial assets carried at fair value through profit or loss are initially 
recognised at fair value and transaction costs are recognised as expense in the income statement.            

              
 3.1.3 Subsequent measurement            
              
  Subsequent to initial recognition, financial assets designated by the management as loans and receivables, at 

fair value through profit or loss and available for sale are valued as follows:            
              
  a) Loans and receivables           
              
   Subsequent to initial recognition financial assets classified as 'Loans and receivables' are carried at 

amortized cost using the effective interest method.           
              
   Gain or loss is also recognized in the income statement when financial assets carried at amortized cost 

are derecognized or impaired, and through the amortization process.           
              
   Significant financial assets in the category include deposits, other receivables and bank balances.           
              
  b)  Financial assets 'at fair value through profit or loss'           
              
   Net gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of financial assets carried at fair value through 

profit or loss are taken to the income statement.           
              
   Basis of valuation of listed equity securities           
              
   The investment of the Fund in listed equity securities is valued on the basis of closing quoted market 

prices published by PSX. A security listed on the stock exchange for which no sale is reported on the 
reporting date is valued at its last sale price on the next preceding date on which such exchange is open 
and if no sale is reported for such date the security is valued at an amount neither higher than the closing 
ask price nor lower than the closing bid price.           

              
   Basis of valuation of unlisted equity securities           
              
   Securities not listed or quoted on a stock exchange, other than Government Securities or debt security, 

are valued at investment price / par value.           
              
   Basis of valuation of government securities           
              
   Government Securities not listed on a stock exchange and traded in the interbank market are valued at 
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the average rate quoted on a widely used electronic quotation system and such average rate is based on 
the remaining tenor of the security. Net gains and losses arising on changes in the fair value are taken to 
the income statement.           

              
  c)  Available for sale           
              
   Net gains and losses arising from changes in fair value of available for sale financial assets are taken to 

the 'statement of comprehensive income' until these are derecognized or impaired. At this time, the 
cumulative gain or loss previously recognized directly in the 'statement of comprehensive income' is 
transferred to the 'income statement'.           

              
 3.1.4 Impairment            
              
  Financial assets not carried 'at fair value through profit or loss' are reviewed at each balance sheet date to 

determine whether there is any indication of impairment. A financial asset is impaired if there is objective 
evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that occurred after the initial recognition of asset and 
that loss events had an impact on the future cash flows of that asset that can be estimated reliably.            

              
  An impairment loss in respect of a financial asset measured at amortized cost is calculated as the difference 

between its carrying amount and the present value of the estimated future cash flows discounted at the asset's 
original effective interest rate. In case of an investment in an equity security, a significant or prolong decline 
in fair value below its cost is objective evidence of impairment. Impairment losses are recognised in Income 
Statement. Any subsequent decrease in impairment loss on debt securities classified as available-for-sale is 
recognised in Income Statement.             

              
 3.1.5 Derecognition            
              
  Financial assets are derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the investments have expired or 

have been transferred and the Fund has transferred substantially all risks and rewards of ownership.            
              
 3.1.6 Offsetting of financial assets and liabilities            
              
  Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the Statement of Assets 

and Liabilities when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and there is an 
intention to settle on a net basis, or to realize the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.            

              
 3.2 Cash and cash equivalents            
              
  Cash and cash equivalents comprise of deposits and current accounts maintained with banks. Cash 

equivalents are short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash, 
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, and are held for the purpose of meeting short term cash 
commitments rather than for investments and other purposes.            

              
 3.3 Financial liabilities            
              
  All financial liabilities are recognized at the time when the Fund becomes a party to the contractual 

provisions of the instrument. They are initially recognized at fair value and subsequently stated at amortized 
cost.            

              
  A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or 

expired. Financial liabilities include remuneration payable to the Management Company and other 
liabilities. Financial liabilities other then those at fair value through profit or loss account are measured at 
amortized cost using effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss on derecognition is taken to the income 
statement.            

     

35

First Capital Mutual Fund

FCMF



         
 3.4 Provisions and contingencies            
              
  Provisions are recognized when the Fund has a present, legal or constructive obligation as a result of past 

events, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the 
obligation and a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made. Provisions are regularly reviewed and 
adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. Where outflow of resources embodying economic benefits is not 
probable, a contingent liability is disclosed, unless the possibility of outflow is remote.            

              
 3.5 Taxation            
              
  Current tax            
              
  The income of the Fund is exempt from income tax under clause 99 of Part I of the Second Schedule to the 

Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 subject to the condition that not less than ninety percent of its accounting 
income for the year, as reduced by capital gains, whether realized or unrealized, is distributed amongst the 
unit holders, provided that for the purpose of determining distribution of not less then 90% of its accounting 
income for the year, the income distributed through bonus units shall not be taken into account.            

              
  The Fund is also exempt from the provisions of section 113 (minimum tax) under clause 11A of Part IV of the 

Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001.            
              
  Deferred tax            
              
  The Fund provides for deferred taxation using the balance sheet liability method on all major temporary 

differences between the amounts used for financial reporting purposes and amounts used for taxation 
purposes. In addition, the Fund also records deferred tax asset on unutilized tax losses to the extent that it is 
probable that the related tax benefit will be realized. However, the Fund has not recognized any amount in 
respect of deferred tax in these financial statements as the Fund has a past practice and intends to continue the 
same by availing the tax exemption in future years through distributing at least ninety percent of its 
accounting income for the year as reduced by capital gains, whether realized or unrealized, to its unit holders. 
Further, it is also mandatory as per section 63(1) of the NBFC regulations 2008 to distribute ninety percent of 
aforesaid accounting income as dividend.            

              
 3.6 Issuance of units            
              
  Units issued are recorded at the offer price, determined by the Management Company for the applications 

received by the distributors during business hours on that day. The offer price represents the net asset value 
per unit as of the close of the business day plus the allowable sales load, provision for transaction costs and 
any provision for duties and charges, if applicable. The sales load is payable to the investment facilitators, 
distributors and the Management Company.             

              
 3.7 Redemption of units            
              
  Units redeemed are recorded at the redemption price, applicable to units for which the distributors / 

Management Company receive redemption applications during business hours of that day. The redemption 
price represents the Net Asset Value per unit as of the close of the business day less back-end load, any duties, 
taxes, charges on redemption and any provision for transaction costs, if applicable.            

              
 3.8 Element of income / (loss) and capital gains / (losses) included in prices of units issued less those in units 

redeemed - net            
              
  Element of Income represents the difference between net assets value on the issuance or redemption date, as 

the case may be, of units and the net assets value at the beginning of the accounting period.            
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  The net "element of income / (loss) and capital gains / (losses) in prices of units sold less those in units 
redeemed" during an accounting year is recognised in the income statement.            

              
 3.9 Net asset value per unit            
              
  The Net Asset Value per unit as disclosed on the Statement of Assets and Liabilities is calculated by dividing 

the net assets of the Fund by the number of units in issue at the year end.            
              
 3.10 Earnings per unit            
              
  Earnings per unit (EPU) have not been disclosed as in the opinion of the management, determination of 

weighted average number of outstanding units for calculating EPU is not practicable.            
              
 3.11 Dividend and bonus units            
              
  Dividend declared (including distribution in the form of bonus units) is recognized in the period in which it is 

authorized or approved. Dividend declared subsequent to the balance sheet date are considered as non-
adjusting events and are recognized in the financial statements in the period in which such distributions are 
declared.            

              
 3.12 Expenses            
              
  All expenses including NAV based expenses (namely management fee, trustee fee and annual fee payable to 

the SECP) are recognized in the Income Statement on an accrual basis.            
              
 3.13 Incomes            
              
  - Capital gains / (losses) arising on sale of investments are included in the income statement on the date at 

which the transaction takes place.           
              
  - Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive the dividend is established.           
              
  - Unrealized capital gains / (losses) arising, on re-measurement of investments classified as financial 

assets 'at fair value through profit or loss are included in the income statement in the year in which they 
arise.           

              
  - Profit on bank deposits is recognized on time proportionate basis.           
              
  - Income on government securities is recognized on an accrual basis.           
              
  - Element of income / (loss) and capital gains / (losses) included in prices of units issued less those in units 

redeemed realised during the year is included in the Income Statement on the date of issue and 
redemption of units.           
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Rupees
20162017

Note

4  Bank balances               
              
 Cash at bank   
 - saving accounts     4.1  3,413,018   4,565,869 
 - current account       5,000  5,000 
         3,418,018   4,570,869 
              
 4.1 These bank accounts carry profit at the rate ranging from 3.75% to 4.25% per annum
  (2016: 4.00% to 5.00% per annum).            
              
              
            
5 Investments         

              
 At fair value through profit or loss              
              
 Listed equity securities    5.1  209,467,908   193,963,633 
 Government securities - Market treasury bills  5.2  11,990,208   17,901,954 
         221,458,116 211,865,587 

Rupees
20162017

Note

FCMF



Rupees (%)

Sector / Investee Company

5.1Investments - at fair value through profit or loss

Listed equity securities

Shares of listed companies - Fully paid ordinary shares with a face value of Rs. 10 each unless stated otherwise.

 As at 
01 July 2016 

 Purchases
made during

the year 

 Bonus/ right
issued during

the year 

 Sales made
during

the year 

 As at 
30 June

2017 

 Carrying
value  

 Market
value 

 Appreciation /
(diminution) 

Net assets of the
Fund ( with market

value of investments)

Paid up capital of
investee company (with

face value of investments)

Market value
of total

investments

Shares

Number of Shares As at 30 June 2017 Percentage in relation to 

Automobile Assembler                      
Al-Ghazi Tractors Limited *  3,490   6,300   -     (7,490)  2,300   1,338,600   1,480,924   142,324  0.71% 0.00% 0.70%
Atlas Honda Limited  1,000   1,000   -     (2,000)  -     -     -     -    0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Dewan Farooque Motors Limited  -     10,000   -     (10,000)  -     -     -     -    0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Ghandhara Nissan Limited  6,000   -    -     (6,000)  -     -     -     -    0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Honda Atlas Cars (Pakistan) Limited  2,900   3,000   -     (2,900)  3,000   2,396,000   2,603,070   207,070  1.25% 0.00% 1.23%
Indus Motor Company Limited  1,800   3,000   -     (4,800)  -     -     -     -    0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Millat Tractors Limited  1,216   8,000   -     (7,216)  2,000   2,648,972   2,748,880   99,908  1.32% 0.00% 1.30%
Pak Suzuki Motor Company Limited  2,800   -     -     (2,800)  -     -     -     -    0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
   19,206   31,300   -     (43,206)  7,300   6,383,572   6,832,874   449,302  3.28% 0.00% 3.23%
Automobile Parts & Accessories                      
Loads Limited   -     42,000   -     (42,000)  -     -     -     -    0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
The General Tyre & Rubber Company   5,400   10,000   -     (5,400)  10,000   3,012,500   3,035,000   22,500  1.46% 0.02% 1.43%
of Pakistan Limited                     
   5,400   52,000   -     (47,400)  10,000   3,012,500   3,035,000   22,500  1.46% 0.02% 1.43%
                      
Banks                      
Allied Bank Limited  13,295   -     -     (13,295)  -     -     -     -    0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Askari Bank Limited  84,500   25,000   -     (109,500)  -     -     -     -    0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Bank Al Habib Limited  85,800   -     -     (85,800)  -     -     -     -    0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Bank Alfalah Limited  40,000   23,500   -     (63,500)  -     -     -     -    0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Bank Of Punjab   47,180   753,500   -     (450,500)  350,180  5,556,610   4,125,120   (1,431,490) 1.98% 0.02% 1.95%
Bank Of Punjab - LoR  -     -     385,126   -     385,126   -     15,405   15,405  0.01% 0.04% 0.01%
Faysal Bank Limited  72,300   142,000   3,080   (116,500)  100,880   2,048,418   2,269,800   221,382  1.09% 0.01% 1.07%
Habib Bank Limited  50,500   95,700   -     (86,200)  60,000   15,701,082   16,148,400   447,318  7.76% 0.00% 7.62%
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited  55,000   -     -     (55,000)  -     -     -     -    0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
JS Bank Limited   -     200,000   -     (200,000)  -     -    -     -    0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
MCB Bank Limited  33,500   15,500   -     (10,000)  39,000   8,778,205   8,206,770   (571,435) 3.94% 0.00% 3.87%
Meezan Bank Limited  1,000   -     -     (1,000)  -     -     -     -    0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
National Bank Of Pakistan  49,750   15,000   -     (64,750)  -     -     -     -    0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Silk Bank Limited  -     225,000   -     (225,000)  -    -     -     -    0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Standard Chartered Bank   16,000   -     -     (16,000)  -     -    -     -  0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
(Pakistan) Limited                      
Summit Bank Limited  -     550,000   -     -     550,000   2,810,400   2,266,000   (544,400) 1.09% 0.03% 1.07%
United Bank Limited  49,600   43,500   -     (47,100)  46,000   10,182,579   10,833,920   651,341  5.20% 0.00% 5.11%
   598,425   2,088,700   388,206   (1,544,145)  1,531,186   45,077,294   43,865,415   (1,211,879) 21.07% 0.10% 20.70%
                      
Cables & Electrical Goods                      
Pak Elektron Limited  40,000   75,000   -     (100,000)  15,000   1,718,251   1,654,800   (63,451) 0.80% 0.00% 0.78%
Singer Pakistan Limited  -     82,000   -     (40,000)  42,000   2,941,251   2,614,080   (327,171) 1.26% 0.09% 1.23%
TPL Trakker Limited  47,000   300,000   -     (197,000)  150,000   2,492,575   1,482,000   (1,010,575) 0.71% 0.07% 0.70%     
  87,000   457,000   -     (337,000)  207,000  7,152,077   5,750,880   (1,401,197) 2.77% 0.16% 2.71%
Cement                      
Attock Cement Pakistan Limited  1,450   1,500   -     (2,950)  -     -     -     -    0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Bestway Cement Limited  -     8,492  -     (8,492)  -     -     -     -    0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Cherat Cement Company Limited  7,500   58,400   -     (65,900)  -     -     -     -    0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
D.G. Khan Cement Company Limited  24,200   44,800   -     (45,000)  24,000   5,680,849   5,115,840   (565,009) 2.46% 0.01% 2.41%
Dandot Cement Company Limited  -     128,500   -     (106,000)  22,500   325,023   320,625   (4,398) 0.15% 0.02% 0.15%
Dewan Cement Limited  -     75,000   -     (75,000)  -     -    -     -    0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Fauji Cement Company Limited  70,500   119,500   -     (125,000)  65,000   2,849,667   2,666,950   (182,717) 1.28% 0.00% 1.26%
Fecto Cement Limited  7,000   -     -     (7,000)  -     -     -     -    0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Flying Cement Company Limited  -     133,000   -     (133,000)  -     -     -     -    0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
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Gharibwal Cement Limited  -     30,000  -     -     30,000  1,929,745   1,366,200   (563,545) 0.66% 0.01% 0.64%
Kohat Cement Company Limited  4,600  15,700   -     (20,300)  -     -     -    -    0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Lucky Cement Limited  13,500   11,500  -     (13,000)  12,000   10,468,066   10,035,120   (432,946) 4.82% 0.00% 4.74%
Maple Leaf Cement Factory Limited  23,500   21,000  -     (26,500)  18,000   2,178,000   2,004,480   (173,520) 0.96% 0.00% 0.95%
Pakcem Limited   84,916   -     -     (84,916)  -     -     -     -    0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Pioneer Cement Limited  19,000  70,500  -     (62,500)  27,000   4,050,200   3,510,000   (540,200) 1.69% 0.01% 1.66%
Power Cement Limited  -     800,000   -     (650,000)  150,000   2,921,271   2,007,000   (914,271) 0.96% 0.04% 0.95%
Power Cement Limited - LoR  -     -     243,000   (243,000)  -     -     -     -    0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Thatta Cement Company Limited  -     25,000   -     (25,000)  -     -     -     -    0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
   256,166  1,542,892   243,000   (1,693,558)  348,500   30,402,821   27,026,215   (3,376,606) 12.98% 0.09% 12.76%
                      
Chemicals                      
AKZO Nobel Pakistan Limited  5,700  -     -    (5,700)  -     -     -     -    0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Archroma Pakistan Limited  3,100  -     -     (3,100)  -     -     -     -    0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Engro Polymer & Chemicals Limited  -     50,000  -     -     50,000   1,387,500   1,825,000   437,500  0.88% 0.01% 0.86%
Ghani Gases Limited  -     220,000  -     (170,000)  50,000  1,733,000   1,315,000   (418,000) 0.63% 0.04% 0.62%
ICI Pakistan Limited  1,688  4,500  -     (3,188)  3,000 3,350,500   3,283,650   (66,850) 1.58% 0.00% 1.55%
Lotte Chemical Pakistan Limited  -     100,000   -     (100,000)  -     -     -     -    0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Nimir Industrial Chemicals Limited  -     10,000   -     (10,000)  -     -     -     -    0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
   10,488  384,500   -     (291,988)  103,000   6,471,000   6,423,650   (47,350) 3.09% 0.05% 3.03%
                      

Fertilizer                   
Dawood Hercules Corporation Limited  25,000   5,000  -     (30,000)  -     -     -     -    0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Engro Fertilizers Limited  58,000   30,000   -     (46,000)  42,000   2,640,189   2,320,080   (320,109) 1.11% 0.00% 1.10%
Engro Corporation Limited  27,600   36,400   -     (37,500)  26,500   9,430,806   8,636,615   (794,191) 4.15% 0.01% 4.08%
Fatima Fertilizer Company Limited  47,500  12,500  -     (60,000)  -     -     -     -    0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Fauji Fertilizer Bin Qasim Limited  31,000   15,000   -     (23,000)  23,000   1,243,155   985,320   (257,835) 0.47% 0.00% 0.47%
Fauji Fertilizer Company Limited  27,700   19,000   -     -     46,700   5,179,344   3,859,288   (1,320,056) 1.85% 0.00% 1.82%
   216,800   117,900   -     (196,500)  138,200   18,493,494   15,801,303   (2,692,191) 7.58% 0.01% 7.47%
                      
Foods & Personal Care Products                    
Al Shaheer Corporation Limited  8,000   -     -     (8,000)  -     -     -     -    0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Engro Foods Limited  11,500  -     -     (11,500)  -     -    -    - 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
National Foods Limited *  3,400   -     -     (3,400)  -     -     -     -    0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Treet Corporation Limited  -     44,000   -     (10,000)  34,000  2,207,550   1,933,920   (273,630) 0.93% 0.02% 0.91%
   22,900  44,000   -     (32,900)  34,000  2,207,550   1,933,920   (273,630) 0.93% 0.02% 0.91%
                      
Glass & Ceramics               
Shabbir Tiles & Ceramics Limited  -     150,000   -     (150,000)  -     -    -     -    0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Tariq Glass Industries Ltd  -     40,000  -     (40,000)  -     -     -     -    0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
   -     190,000   -     (190,000)  -     -     -    -    0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
                      
Industrial Engineering                  
Aisha Steel Mills Limited  -     690,000  -     (450,000)  240,000   5,761,310   4,881,600   (879,710) 2.35% 0.04% 2.30%
Amreli Steels Limited  16,500   41,500  -     (48,0000)  10,000  1,141,000   1,229,500   88,500  0.59% 0.00% 0.58%
Crescent Steel & Allied Products Limited  9,200  10,000  -     (19,200)  -     -     -     -    0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Dost Steels Limited  -     237,500  -     (100,000)  137,500   1,945,435   1,515,250   (430,185) 0.73% 0.04% 0.72%
International Steels Limited  5,000  59,000   -     (24,000)  40,000   5,226,145   5,115,600   (110,545) 2.46% 0.01% 2.41%
Mughal Iron And Steel Industries Ltd  20,500  105,000   -     (60,500)  65,000   5,137,820   5,247,450   109,630  2.52% 0.03% 2.48%
   51,200  1,143,000  -     (701,700)  492,500  19,211,710   17,989,400   (1,222,310) 8.65% 0.12% 8.49%
                      

Rupees (%)

Sector / Investee Company
 As at 

01 July 2016 
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the year 
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the year 

 Sales made
during

the year 

 As at 
30 June

2017 
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Fund ( with market

value of investments)

Paid up capital of
investee company (with

face value of investments)

Market value
of total

investments

Shares

Number of Shares As at 30 June 2017 Percentage in relation to 

40

First C
ap

ital M
u

tu
al Fu

n
d

FC
M

F



41

First C
ap

ital M
u

tu
al Fu

n
d

FC
M

F

Insurance                     
Adamjee Insurance Company Limited  10,574  10,000  -     (20,574)  -     -     -     -    0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Habib Insurance Company Limited *  72,500   -     -     (72,500)  -     -     -    - 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Jubilee Life Insurance Company Limited  -     2,000   -     (2,000)  -    -     -     -    0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Pakistan Reinsurance Company Limited  29,000  -     -     (29,000)  -     -     -     -    0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Shaheen Insurance Company Limited  110,318   246,500   -     -     356,818   2,609,541   2,251,522   (358,019) 1.08% 0.59% 1.06%
The United Insurance Company   36,680   -     127   (35,521)  1,286   16,979   21,541   4,562  0.01% 0.00% 0.01%
of Pakistan Limited                      
   259,072   258,500  127  (159,595)  358,104   2,626,520   2,273,063   (353,457) 1.09% 0.59% 1.07%
                      
Investment Banks / Investment Companies           
Escorts Investment Bank Limited  -    100,500   -     (100,500)  -     -     -     -    0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
First Capital Equities Limited  128,395   -     -     (500)  127,895   3,549,086   1,151,055   (2,398,031) 0.55% 0.09% 0.54%
Jahangir Siddiqui & Company Limited  -     10,000   -     (10,000)  -     -     -     -    0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
   128,395  110,500   -     (111,000)  127,895   3,549,086   1,151,055   (2,398,031) 0.55% 0.09% 0.54%
                      
Miscellaneous                      
Pace (Pakistan) Limited  -     95,000   -     (95,000)  -     -     -     -    0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
TPL Properties Limited  -     100,000   -     -     100,000   1,248,977   1,225,000   (23,977) 0.59% 0.05% 0.58%
   -     195,000   -     (95,000)  100,000   1,248,977   1,225,000   (23,977) 0.59% 0.05% 0.58%
                      
Oil & Gas Exploration Companies                      
Mari Petroleum Company Limited  627   500   -     (1,050)  77  73,752   121,324   47,572  0.06% 0.00% 0.06%
Oil & Gas Development Company Limited  62,800  30,000   -     (62,800)  30,000   4,350,303   4,220,700   (129,603) 2.03% 0.00% 1.99%
Pakistan Oilfields Limited  9,700   11,800   -     (13,500)  8,000   4,102,500   3,665,200   (437,300) 1.76% 0.00% 1.73%
Pakistan Petroleum Limited  45,200   52,500  -     (53,200)  44,500   7,579,755   6,592,230   (987,525) 3.17% 0.00% 3.11%
   118,327  94,800  -     (130,550)  82,577   16,106,310   14,599,454   (1,506,856) 7.02% 0.00% 6.89%
Oil & Gas Marketing Companies                      
Attock Petroleum Limited  2,200   -     -     (2,200)  -     -     -     -    0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Hascol Petroleum Limited  9,493   10,700  49  (14,200)  6,042   1,948,956   2,060,926   111,970  0.99% 0.01% 0.97%
Hi-Tech Lubricants Limited  -     10,000  -     (10,000)  -     -     -     -    0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Pakistan State Oil Company Limited  18,700   24,800   -     (28,000)  15,500  6,680,244   6,003,925   (676,319) 2.88% 0.01% 2.83%
Shell Pakistan Limited  7,500  5,000   -     (12,500)  -     -     -     -    0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Sui Northern Gas Pipelines Limited  44,000   50,000   -     (74,000)  20,000   3,223,751   2,978,400   (245,351) 1.43% 0.00% 1.41%
Sui Southern Gas Company Limited  44,500  104,500   -     (129,000)  20,000   889,421   728,200   (161,221) 0.35% 0.00% 0.34%
   126,393  205,000   49  (269,900)  61,542   12,742,372   11,771,451   (970,921) 5.65% 0.02% 5.55%
                      
Paper & Board                     
Cherat Packaging Limited  2,100.00   -     -     (2,100.00)  -     -     -     -    0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Packages Limited  6,600.00   9,800.00   -     (1,400.00)  15,000   11,774,344   10,433,700   (1,340,644) 5.01% 0.02% 4.92%
   8,700.00   9,800.00   -     (3,500.00)  15,000   11,774,344   10,433,700   (1,340,644) 5.01% 0.02% 4.92%
                      
Pharmaceuticals                      
Abbott Laboratories (Pakistan) Limited  1,300  -     -     (1,30000)  -     -     -     -    0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Ferozsons Laboratories Limited  500   -    -     (500)  -     -     -     -    0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Glaxosmithkline Pakistan Limited  7,200   10,600  -     (2,800)  15,000   3,498,518   2,953,800   (544,718) 1.42% 0.00% 1.39%
Glaxosmithkline Consumer Healthcare   2,160   4,000  -     (5,160)  1,000   289,000   209,010   (79,990) 0.10% 0.00% 0.10%
Pakistan Limited **                     
Highnoon Laboratories Limited  2,365   -     3  (2,334)  34   17,868   21,293   3,425  0.01% 0.00% 0.01%
The Searle Company Limited  5,005   5,000   1,137   (4,700)  6,442   4,011,852   3,298,176   (713,676) 1.58% 0.00% 1.56%
   18,53000   19,600   1,140  (16,794)  22,476  7,817,238   6,482,279   (1,334,959) 3.11% 0.00% 3.06%
                      

Rupees (%)

Sector / Investee Company
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Power Generation & Distribution                      
Japan Power Geneeration Limited  -     100,000   -     (100,000)  -     -     -     -    0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
K-Electric Limited *  308,500  151,500  -     (260,000)  200,000   1,753,328   1,380,000   (373,328) 0.66% 0.00% 0.65%
Kot Addu Power Company Limited  35,000   -     -     -     35,000   3,123,750   2,520,700   (603,050) 1.21% 0.00% 1.19%
Lalpir Power Limited  49,000   -     -     (49,000)  -     -     -     -    0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Nishat Chunian Power Limited  27,502   -     -     (27,502)  -     -     -     -    0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Nishat Power Limited  38,500  -     -     (38,500)  -     -     -     -    0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Pakgen Power Limited  25,000  -     -     (25,000)  -     -     -     -    0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
The Hub Power Company Limited  75,300  -     -     (19,000)  56,300   6,759,378   6,611,309   (148,069) 3.18% 0.00% 3.12%
Tri-Star Power XD  -     125,000  -     (100,000)  25,000   288,990   285,500   (3,490) 0.14% 0.17% 0.13%
   558,802  376,500  -     (619,002.)  316,300   11,925,446   10,797,509   (1,127,937) 5.19% 0.17% 5.09%
                      
                      
Refinery                      
Attock Refinery Limited  4,800  10,000  -     (11,800)  3,000   1,309,391   1,147,740   (161,651) 0.55% 0.00% 0.54%
Byco Petroleum Pakistan Limited  59,000   141,000  -     -     200,000   4,657,705   3,820,000   (837,705) 1.84% 0.02% 1.80%
National Refinery Limited  3,800   -     -     (3,800)  -     -     -     -    0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Pakistan Refinery Limited  -     45,000  -     (20,000)  25,000   1,811,605   1,331,500   (480,105) 0.64% 0.01% 0.63%
   67,600   196,000   -     (35,600)  228,000   7,778,701   6,299,240   (1,479,461) 3.03% 0.03% 2.97%
                      
Sugar & Allied Industries                      
Noon Sugar Mills Limited  -     15,000   -     (10,000)  5,000   425,000   427,500   2,500  0.21% 0.03% 0.20%
Shakarganj Limited  -     50,000   -     (50,000)  -     -     -     -    0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
   -     65,000   -     (60,000)  5,000  425,000   427,500   2,500  0.21% 0.03% 0.20%
                      
Technology & Communications                      
Media Times Limited  -     20,000  -     (20,000)  -     -     -     -    0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
NETSOL Technologies Limited  -     45,000  -     (30,000)  15,000  1,330,499   867,450   (463,049) 0.42% 0.02% 0.41%
Pakistan Telecommunication   88,500   -     -     (88,500)  -     -     -     -    0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Company Limited                     
Systems Limited   -     5,000  -     (5,000)  -     -     -     -    0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
TRG Pakistan Limited  -     222,500   -     (107,500)  115,000   5,832,406   4,610,350   (1,222,056) 2.21% 0.02% 2.18%
World Call Telecom Limited  -     750,000  -     (550,000)  200,000  500,000   610,000   110,000  0.29% 0.02% 0.29%
   88,500  1,042,500  -     (801,000)  330,000   7,662,905   6,087,800   (1,575,105) 2.92% 0.06% 2.88%
                      
Textile Spinning                      
Gadoon Textile Mills Limited  3,690  -     -     (3,690)  -     -     -     -    0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
   3,690  -     -     (3,690)  -     -     -     -    0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
                      
Textile Composite                     
Gul Ahmed Textile Mills Limited  -     65,000   -     (15,000)  50,000  2,539,040   2,049,000   (490,040) 0.98% 0.01% 0.97%
Kohinoor Textile Mills Limited  -     20,000  -     (20,000)  -     -     -     -    0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Nishat (Chunian) Limited  25,50000   15,000   -     (30,500)  10,000   591,925   513,200   (78,725) 0.25% 0.00% 0.24%
Nishat Mills Limited  27,300   36,700   -     (36,000)  28,000   4,799,950   4,443,040   (356,910) 2.13% 0.01% 2.10%
   52,800   136,700   -     (101,500)  88,000  7,930,915   7,005,240   (925,675) 3.36% 0.02% 3.31%
                      
Transport                      
Pakistan International Bulk   15,000  45,000  -     (30,000)  30,000   940,245   694,800   (245,445) 0.33% 0.00% 0.33%
Terminal Limited                     
Pakistan International Bulk   -     -     7,625   (7,625)  -     -     -     -    0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Terminal Limited - LoR                      
Pakistan National Shipping Corporation  7,200   20,000   -     (14,800)  12,400   2,400,950   1,561,160   (839,790) 0.75% 0.01% 0.74%
   22,200  65,000   7,625  (52,425)  42,400  3,341,195   2,255,960   (1,085,235) 1.08% 0.01% 1.07%

Rupees (%)
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Total as at 30 June 2017  2,720,594  8,826,192  640,147   (7,537,953)  4,648,980   233,341,027   209,467,908   (23,873,119)                    

Total as at 30 June 2016  4,266,368   1,404,050   16,742   (2,966,566)  2,720,594  193,622,285   193,963,633   341,348     
                    
* The face value of each share held of Habib Insurance Company Limited, Al Ghazi Tractors Limited and National Foods Limited is Rs. 5 each and face value of each share held of K-Electric Limited is Rs. 3.5 each.



5.1.1 The Finance Act 2014 brought amendments in the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 whereby the bonus shares received by the shareholder are to be treated as income and a tax at the rate of 5% is to be 
applied on the value of bonus shares determined on the basis of day end price on the first day of book closure. The tax is to be collected at source by the Company declaring bonus shares which shall 
be considered as final discharge of tax liability on such income. However, the Management Company of the fund along with other asset management companies and Mutual Fund Association of 
Pakistan, had filed a petition in the Honorable Sindh High Court ("the Court") to declare the amendments brought into the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001 with reference to tax on bonus shares for 
collective investment schemes ("CIS") as null and void and not applicable on mutual funds based on the premise of exemption given to mutual funds under clause 47B of Part IV and clause 99 of Part 
I of the Second Schedule of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. The Court has granted stay order in favor of CIS till the final outcome of the case. Accordingly, the investee companies have withheld 
the shares equivalent to 5% bonus shares announcement and not deposited in CDC account of department of Income Tax. However, the Fund has included the bonus shares withheld by the Investee 
Companies in its investment portfolio, amounting to Rs. 0.698 million (2016: Rs. 0.326 million) on the basis of aforementioned Court order. Had the Fund not included bonus shares withheld by 
investee companies in its investment portfolio, net asset value at the reporting date would have been lower by Rs. 0.0421 per unit (2016: Rs. 0.0198 per unit).                      

                       
** During the year 2016, the Fund received 2,160 unlisted ordinary shares of GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Limited on demerger of Consumer Healthcare business from 

GlaxoSmithKline Pakistan Limited. During the current year (March 2017), the shares of GlaxoSmithKline Consumer Healthcare Pakistan Limited were duly listed on PSX.                      
                       
5.2 Government securities - Market treasury bills                      
                       

 Market treasury bills                      
                       
 12-May-16  3 months    18,000,000   -     (18,000,000)  -     -     -     -     -     -     -   
 13-Apr-17  3 months    -     12,000,000   -     12,000,000   11,990,286   11,990,208   (78)  5.41   5.76   5.96 
 19-Jan-17  3 months    -     10,000,000   (10,000,000)  -     -     -     -     -     -     -    
 4-Aug-16  3 months    -     18,000,000   (18,000,000)  -     -     -     -     -     -     -   
 27-Oct-16  3 months     -     18,000,000   (18,000,000)  -     -     -    -     -     -    -   
                       
 Total as at 30 June 2017  18,000,000 58,000,000   (64,000,000)  12,000,000   11,990,286   11,990,208   (78) 

 Total as at 30 June 2016   10,000,000   68,000,000   (60,000,000)  18,000,000   17,897,271   17,901,954   4,683       
                       
5.2.1 The outstanding treasury bill has a maturity period of 3 months (2016: 3 months). 
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 5.3 Unrealized (diminution) / appreciation in value of investments at fair value through profit or loss - net           
             
            
            
 Market value of investments     221,458,116 211,865,587
 Carrying value of investments      (245,331,313)  (211,519,556)
         (23,873,197)  346,031 
             
6 Dividend and profit receivable - unsecured, considered good            
             
 Dividend receivable     6.1 346,292   362,516 
 Profit accrued on bank deposits      16,305   20,191 
         362,597   382,707 
             
 6.1 This includes dividend receivable on bonus shares amounting to Rs. 5,891 (2016: 3,516), withheld by 

investee companies due to facts as stated in note 5.1.1.           
             
           
7 Advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables            
             
 Advance Tax deducted      646,374  262,177 
 Other receivable from Management Company    211,363  211,363 
 Prepaid Annual Fee of CDC      12,956  13,035 
 Security Deposits with CDC      237,500  237,500 
         1,108,193   724,075 
             
8 Remuneration payable to First Capital Investment Limited -             
 Management Company            
             
 Remuneration payable to the Management Company 8.1  1,162,973   316,360 
 Punjab Sales Tax on remuneration to the Management Company 8.2  151,186   50,618 
 Federal Excise Duty on remuneration to             
 the Management Company    8.3 3,713,448  3,713,448 
         5,027,607   4,080,426 

Rupees
20162017

Note

Rupees
20162017

Note

 8.1 Under the provisions of the NBFC Regulations 2008, the Management Company of the Fund is 
entitled to an accrued remuneration of an amount not exceeding two percent per annum of the average 
annual net assets of the Fund. Management Company has charged remuneration at 2% per annum 
based on the daily net assets of the Fund during the year ended 30 June 2017. Remuneration is paid to 
the Management company in arrears on a monthly basis.           

             
 8.2 The Provincial Government of Punjab levied Punjab Sales Tax at the rate of 16% on the remuneration 

of the Management Company through the Punjab Sales Tax on Services Act, 2012 effective from 01 
July 2012.           

             
 8.3 As per the requirements of the Finance Act, 2013, Federal Excise Duty (FED) at the rate of 16 percent 

on the remuneration of the Management Company has been applied effective from 13 June 2013. The 

FCMF
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Management Company is of the view that since the remuneration is already subject to the provincial 
sales tax, further levy of FED may result in double taxation, which does not appear to be the spirit of 
the law, hence, a petition was collectively filed by the Mutual Fund Association of Pakistan with the 
Sindh High Court (SHC) on 4 September 2013.            

             
  While disposing the above petition through order dated 16 July 2016, the SHC declared the said 

provisions to be ultra vires and as a result no FED is payable with effect from 01 July 2016. However, 
the tax authorities subsequently filed appeal against the decision of the SHC in the Supreme Court of 
Pakistan, which is pending for the decision.           

             
  Further, on 30 June 2016  the Court has passed a Judgment that after 18th amendment in Constitution 

of Pakistan the Provinces alone have the legislative power to  levy a tax on rendering or providing 
services therefore chargeability and collection of FED after 1 July 2011 is Ultra Vires to the 
Constitution of Pakistan. Furthermore, the Finance Act 2016 also introduced an amendment to the 
Federal Excise Act, 2005 whereby FED was withdrawn on services of different industries including 
Non-Banking Financial Institutions, which are already subject to provisional sales tax.            

             
  In view of uncertainty regarding the applicability of FED on asset management services, the 

management as a matter of abundant caution, has not reversed the provision of FED amounting to Rs. 
3.713 million ( 2016: Rs. 3.713 million) as the Federal Board of Revenue could file an appeal with 
Honorable Supreme Court of Pakistan ("the Honorable SCP") against the Judgment passed by the 
Court. Had the said provision of FED not been recorded in the books of account of the Fund, the net 
asset value per unit of the Fund would have been higher by Rs. 0.2236 per unit (2016: 0.2254 per unit).            

9 Other payables            
             
 Accounting & operational charges     217,940   -   
 Sindh Sales Tax on accounting & operational charges   17,435   -   
 Sales load payable       10,000  -   
         245,375  -   

10 Remuneration payable to Central Depository Company             
 of Pakistan Limited - Trustee            
             
 Remuneration to the Trustee    10.1  57,534 57,377 
 Sindh Sales tax on remuneration to the Trustee  10.2  7,479   8,033 
         65,013   65,410 

Rupees
20162017

Note

 10.1 The Trustee is entitled to a monthly remuneration for services rendered to the Fund under the 
provisions of the Trust Deed as per the tariff specified therein, based on the daily Net Assets Value of 
the Fund. The fee is paid to the Trustee monthly in arrears.           

             
  Based on the Trust Deed, the tariff structure applicable to the Fund as at 30 June 2017 is as follows:           
             
  Net Assets Value   Tariff per annum       
             
  Upto Rs 1,000 million  Rs 0.70 million or 0.20% per annum of net assets of the Fund, 
      whichever is higher       
             
  Exceeding Rs 1,000 million Rs 2.0 million plus 0.10% per annum of net assets of the Fund, on 
      amount exceeding Rs 1,000 million 
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 10.2 As per Sindh Finance Act 2016, the Sindh Government levied sales tax at the rate of 13% (2016: 14%) 
on asset management services including services in capacity of Trustee.           

             
11 Annual fee payable to Securities and Exchange             
 Commission of Pakistan            
             
 Under the provisions of the NBFC Regulations a CIS categorized as an equity scheme is required to pay annual 

fee to SECP, an amount equal to 0.095% (2016: 0.095%) of the average annual net assets of the Fund.            

Rupees
20162017

12 Accrued expenses and other liabilities            
             
 Auditors' remuneration      691,200  717,500 
 Listing fees payable       60,000 30,000 
 Witholding & Capital Gain Tax payable     208,962  75,470 
 Transaction costs payable      3,000  1,368 
 Printing charges payable      18,750 -   
 Sindh Sales Tax payable    11.1  390   -   
 Other payable      -     17,795 
         982,302  842,133 

Note

13 Unclaimed dividend            
             
 This mainly includes an amount of Rs. 8.81 million (2016: Rs. 6.42 million) not paid to Salman Taseer (Late) due to 

pending adjudication for issuance of succession certificate before the Honorable Lahore High Court.            
             
14 Provision for Workers' Welfare Fund            
             
 The Finance Act, 2008 introduced an amendment to the Workers' Welfare Fund Ordinance, 1971 ("WWF 

Ordinance") as a result of which it was construed that all CISs / mutual funds whose income exceeded Rs 0.5 
million in a tax year were brought within the scope of the WWF Ordinance, thus rendering them liable to pay 
contribution to WWF at the rate of two percent of their accounting or taxable income, whichever was higher. In 
light of this, MUFAP filed a constitutional petition in the Court challenging the applicability of WWF on CISs 
which is pending adjudication. Similar cases were disposed of by the Peshawar and the Lahore High Courts in 
which these amendments were declared unlawful and unconstitutional. However, these decisions were challenged 
in the Honorable SCP.            

             
 Subsequently, the Finance Act, 2015 introduced an amendment under which CISs / mutual funds have been 

excluded from the definition of “industrial establishment” subject to WWF under the WWF Ordinance. 
Consequently, mutual funds are not subject to this levy after the introduction of this amendment which is applicable 
from tax year 2016. Accordingly, no further provision in respect of WWF was made with effect from 01 July 2015.            

             
 On 10 November 2016 the Honorable SCP has passed a judgment declaring the amendments made in the Finance 

Acts 2006 and 2008 pertaining to WWF as illegal citing that WWF was not in the nature of tax and could, therefore, 
not have been introduced through money bills. Accordingly, the aforesaid amendments have been struck down by 
the Honorable SCP. The Federal Board of Revenue has filed a petition in the Honorable SCP against the said 
judgment, which is pending hearing. While the petitions filed by the CISs on the matter are still pending before the 
SHC, the MUFAP (collectively on behalf of the asset management companies and their CISs) has taken legal and 
tax opinions on the impact of the Honorable SCP judgement on the CISs petition before the Court. Both legal and 
tax advisors consulted, were of the view that the judgment has removed the very basis on which the demands were 
raised against the CISs. Therefore, there was no longer any liability against the CISs under the WWF Ordinance and 
that all cases pending in the Court or lower appellate forums will now be disposed of in light of the earlier 
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judgement of the Honorable SCP.            
             
 In view of the above development regarding the applicability of WWF on CISs / mutual funds, and based on legal 

opinion, MUFAP has recommended that the entire provision against WWF held by the CISs till 30 June 2015, to be 
reversed on 12 January 2017.            

             
 The above decisions were communicated to the SECP and the PSX on 12 January 2017 and the SECP vide its letter 

dated 01 February 2017 has advised MUFAP that the adjustments relating to the above should be prospective and 
supported by adequate disclosures in the financial statements of the CISs/ mutual funds. Accordingly, the Fund has 
recorded these adjustments in its books on 12 January 2017.            

             
 The net effect of the above adjustment has been incorporated in the financial statements during the year and has 

resulted in an increase in the net asset value per unit of the Fund by Rs. 0.4941 per unit.             
             
15 Contingencies and commitments            
             
15.1 The Fund had no contingency or commitment at the year end except as disclosed in note 5.1.1

Rupees
20162017

16 Number of units in issue
       
 Total units in issue at the beginning of the year    16,475,941   22,075,084 
 Add: units issued during the year     698,716   221,093 
 Less: units redeemed during the year     (570,560)  (5,820,236)
 Total units in issue at the end of the year    16,604,097   16,475,941 

17 Securities transaction costs            
             
 This represents brokerage commission, Sindh Sales Tax, Capital Value Tax and settlement charges relating to sale 

and purchase of equity securities.

Rupees
20162017

18 Auditors' remuneration            
             
 Annual audit fee       550,000   550,000 
 Half yearly review fee       330,000   330,000 
 Other certifications and services     20,000   75,000 
 Punjab Sales Tax       100,321   147,750 
 Out of pocket expenses      45,000  41,000 
 Reversal of prior year audit expense     (46,121) -   
         999,200  1,143,750 

19 Taxation            
             
 The income of the Fund is exempt from Income Tax as per Clause 99 of Part I of the Second Schedule to the Income 

Tax Ordinance, 2001 subject to the condition that not less than 90% of the accounting income for the year as 
reduced by capital gains whether realised or unrealised is distributed to the unit holders, provided that for the 
purpose of determining distribution of not less then 90% of its accounting income for the year, the income 
distributed through bonus units shall not be taken into account. The Fund is also exempt from the provisions of 
Section 113 (minimum tax) under Clause 11A of Part IV of the Second Schedule to the Income Tax Ordinance, 
2001. Since the Management Company has distributed the income earned by the Fund during the year to the unit 
holders in the manner as explained above, hence no provision for taxation has been made in these financial 
statements.            
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20 Total Expense Ratio            
             
 "In the current period, Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) vide directive no. 

SCD/PRDD/Direction/18/2016 dated 20 July 2016, required that Collective Investment Scheme (CIS) shall 
disclose Total Expense Ratio (TER) in the periodic financial statements of CIS / the Fund.

 
 As per the NBFC Regulations 2008, the Total Expense Ratio (""TER"") of the Fund shall be capped up to 4% of the 

Average Net Assets excluding Government levies, WWF and the SECP Fee etc. TER of the Fund including and 
excluding Government levies, WWF and the SECP Fee etc is 3.97% per annum (2016: 4.12% per annum) and 
3.40% per annum (2016: 3.19% per annum)  respectively."            

             
21 Earnings per unit            
             
 Earnings per unit (EPU) have not been disclosed as in the opinion of the management, determination of weighted 

average number of outstanding units for calculating EPU is not practicable.            
             
22 Transactions with connected persons / related parties            
             
 Connected persons include the Management Company, the Trustee of the Fund, any person or company 

beneficially owning ten percent or more of the capital of the Management Company or net assets of the Fund and 
Directors and Key Management Personnel of the Management Company as at 30 June 2017.            

             
 Transactions with related parties / connected persons are in the normal course of business and on arm's length basis.            
             
 Remuneration to the Management Company and the Trustee of the Fund is determined in accordance with the 

provisions of the NBFC Regulations and Trust Deed respectively as disclosed in note 8 and 9 to these financial 
statements.

Rupees
20162017

22.1 Transactions for the year           
            
 The Management Company  
            
 Remuneration charged for the year     4,358,786 4,011,804 
 Punjab Sales Tax on remuneration of            
 the Management Company*      697,406   744,591 
 FED charged on remuneration            
 of the Management Company*      -     641,889 
 Remuneration paid       3,512,173  -   
 Dividend paid       13,901,147  10,200,916 
 Issuance of 322,609 Units (2016: 587)     4,500,000  6,518 
 Redemption of 158,391 (2016: 263,687) units    2,014,594  263,687 
            
 * Punjab Sales Tax and FED is paid / payable to the Management Company for onwards payment to the 

Government. However, FED for the year is not recognised due to reasons more fully explained in note 8.3.
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Rupees
20162017

Trustee           
           
Remuneration charged for the year      700,000 700,000 
Remuneration paid       699,843   -   
Sindh Sales Tax on remuneration of the Trustee    91,000  98,000 
Settlement charges inclusive of Sindh Sales Tax    3,000  74,570 
Sindh Sales Tax on settlement charges     390  9,695 
CDS Fee paid       76,275 -   
CDS Fee amortised during the year      76,390 -   
           
First Capital Equities Limited - Group Company           
           
Brokerage commission       119,324  22,085 
Dividend paid       2,295  1,632 
           
First Capital Securities Corporation Limited            
- Group Company           
           
Issuance of 162,973 Units (2016: Nil)     2,300,000 -   
Redemption of 162,973 (2016: Nil) units     2,354,025 -   
Dividend paid     -     429,204   305,137 
           
Al - Hoqani securities and Investments Corporation            
(Private) Limited           
           
Dividend paid     21.1.1 -  594,103 
Redemption of Nil units (2016: 3,082,860 units)    -  36,894,043 
           
Sulaiman Ahmed Saeed Al Hoqani           
           
Redemption of Nil units (2016: 2,211,821 units)  21.1.1 -  26,460,434 
Dividend paid       2  875,259 

Note

21.1.1 During the year 2016 Al-Hoqani Securities and Investments Corporation (Private) Limited and Sulaiman 
Ahmed Saeed Al-Hoqani were connected persons due to their more than 10% unitholding in the Fund. 
However, they were not connected person as at the year end since they disposed of their entire unitholding in 
the last year. 

FCMF



50

First Capital Mutual Fund

  Salman Taseer (Late) - Holder of more than 10%            
  unites of the Fund           
             
  Dividend declared      2,683,138  1,906,475 
             
  Word Press (Private) Limited 
             
  Printing charges      -  87,857 
             
 22.2 Outstanding balances as at year end           
             
  The Management Company           
             
  Remuneration payable inclusive of taxes thereon   5,027,607  4,080,426 
  Other receivable      211,363  211,363 
  Units held: 11,110,915 units (2016: 10,946,697 units)   139,285,323  129,171,027 
             
  Trustee           
             
  Remuneration payable inclusive of taxes thereon   65,013  65,410 
  Security deposit      237,500  237,500 
  Settlement charges payable inclusive of taxes thereon   3,390  1,368 
  Prepaid Fee       12,956  13,035 
             
  First Capital Equities Limited - Group Company           
             
  Units held: 1,793 units (2016: 1,793 units)    22,477  21,152 
             
  First Capital Securities Corporation Limited            
  - Group Company           
             
  Units held: 335,316 units (2016: 335,316 units)   4,203,483  3,955,656 
             
  Sulaiman Ahmed Saeed Al Hoqani           
             
  Units held: 2 units (2016: 2 units)   21.1.1 29  27 
             
  Salman Taseer (Late) - Holder of more than 10%            
             
  Units held: 2,096,201 units (2016: 2,096,201 units)   26,277,771  24,728,464 
             
  Key management personnel of the Management Company           
             
  Units held: 602 units (2016: 602 units)    7,549  14,203 

Rupees
20162017

Note
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Individuals       1,943   4,016,526   50,350,834  24.19%
Associated companies / Directors     6   11,449,228   143,526,575  68.95%
Bank/DFI      11   56,949   713,914  0.34%
Retirement Funds      2   15,893   199,228  0.10%
Others       16   1,065,501   13,357,028  6.42%
        1,978   16,604,097   208,147,579  100%
    

         
       

             
Individuals       1,910   3,947,513   46,567,984  23.96%
Associated companies / directors     7   11,285,628   133,134,183  68.50%
Banks and DFIs      5   20,199   238,290  0.12%
NBFCs       1   47,515   560,524  0.29%
Modaraba       4   35,694   421,071  0.22%
Retirement funds      2   15,893   187,482  0.10%
Public limited companies      2   105,397   1,243,346  0.64%
Others       14   1,018,102   12,010,338  6.18%
        1,945   16,475,941   194,363,218  100%

Rupees

2017

Number of
unit holders

Number of
Units held

Investment
amount

Percentage

Rupees

2016

Number of
unit holders

Number of
Units held

Investment
amount

Percentage

Category

Category

24 Particulars of the Investment Committee and Fund Manager             
 Details of members of the Investment Committee of the Fund are as follows:             
              
 Sr. No. Name   Designation  Qualification   Experience in 
           years
              
 1 Imran Hafeez  Chief Executive Officer "Affiliate of ICAP 
        Associate member of PIPFA" "14 Years"
              
 2 Syed Asad Abbas Zaidi Chief Financial Officer Master of Business 
        Administration  11 Years
 3 Syed Ghazanfar Ali Bukhari Chief Investment Officer /         
     Fund Manager  Master of Economics  16 Years
              
 24.1 No other fund is being managed by Mr. Syed Ghazanfar Ali Bukhari.            
              
25 List of top ten brokers by percentage of commission paid 

 Broker's Name         2017 2 016

 First Capital Equities Limited       13.67%  8.81%
 AKD Securities Limited        10.56%  8.41%
 Ismail Iqbal Securities (Private) Limited      9.10%  8.28%
 BMA Capital Management Limited       9.03%  8.34%
 MSMANIAR Financials (Private) Limited      8.87%  8.33%
 Next Capital Limited        8.79%  8.20%
 Pearl Securities Limited        8.31%  8.29%
 Arif Habib Limited         8.15%  8.32%
 Fortune Securities Limited        8.10%  8.47%
 Elixir Securities Pakistan (Private) Limited      4.42%  8.20%

23  Detail of Pattren of Unit Holding FCMF
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26 Attendance at meetings of Board of Directors of Management Company             
              
 The board meetings were held on 30 September 2016, 28 October 2016, 28 Feburary 2017, 29 April 2017, 14 June 

2017.Information in respect of attendance by the directors in the meeting is given below:

Syed Nadeem Hussain     5 4 1 4th
Mr. Imran Hafeez     5 5 -  -
Miss Myra Hussin Qureshi*    5 1 1 2nd
Mr. Jawad Saleem**     5 3 -  -
Mr. Asif Pervaiz     5 5 -  -
Syed Asad Abbas Zaidi     5 5 -  -
Mr. Abdul Sattar     5 5 -  -             

Name of persons attending the meetings

Number of meetings Meetings not 
attendedHeld Attended Leave 

granted

 *Miss Myra Hussain retired on 14 Feburary 2017.             
 ** Mr. Jawad Saleem elected in EOGM held on 14 Feburary 2017.             
              
27 Financial Risk Management             
              
 The Fund's objective in managing risk is the creation and protection of unit holder's value. Risk is inherent in the 

activities of the Fund, but it is managed through monitoring and controlling activities which are primarily set up to 
be performed based on limits established by the Management Company, Fund's constitutive documents and the 
regulations and directives of the SECP. The policies are established to identify and analyse the risks faced by the 
Fund, to set appropriate risk limits and controls and to monitor risks and adherence to limits.             

              
 The Board of Directors of the Management Company has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight 

of the Fund's risk management framework. The Board is also responsible for developing and monitoring the Fund's 
risk management policies. The audit committee oversees how management monitors compliance with the Fund's 
risk management policies and procedures, and reviews adequacy of the risk management framework in relation to 
the risks faced by the Fund. The audit committee is assisted in its oversight role by Internal Audit. Internal Audit 
undertakes regular reviews of risk management controls and procedures, the results of which are reported to the 
audit committee.             

              
 The Fund has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:             
              
 - Credit risk             
 - Liquidity risk             
 - Market risk             
              
 27.1 Credit risk            
              
  Credit risk represents the risk of a loss that would be recognized at the reporting date if counterparties to a 

financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations. Credit risk arises from deposits with banks, 
credit exposure arising as a result of dividends receivable on equity securities, receivable against sale of 
investments, deposits and other receivables and accrued income on bank deposits. For banks and financial 
institutions, only reputed parties are accepted. Credit risk on dividend receivable is minimal due to statutory 
protection.             

              
  Management of credit risk            
              
  The Fund's policy is to enter into financial contracts in accordance with the internal risk management policies 

and investment guidelines approved by the Investment Committee. The Fund does not expect to incur 
material credit losses on its financial assets.            
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  Credit rating is managed and controlled by the Management Company of the Fund in the following manner:            
              
  - Cash is held only with reputable banks with high quality external credit enhancements.           
              
  - Investment transactions are carried out with a large number of brokers, whose credit worthiness is taken 

into account so as to minimize the risk of default and transactions are settled or paid for only upon 
delivery.           

              
  Exposure to credit risk            
              
  The Fund identifies concentrations of credit risk by reference to type of counter party. Maximum exposure to 

2017

Carrying value
of Financial

Assets

2016

Maximum
exposure

Carrying value
of Financial

Assets

Maximum
exposure

RupeesNote

Bank balances including profit receivable 4   3,434,323   3,434,323   4,591,060   4,591,060 
Dividend and profit receivable -   
unsecured, considered good  6   346,292   346,292   362,516   362,516 
Deposits and other receivables  7  1,095,237   1,095,237   711,040   711,040 
       4,875,852   4,875,852   5,664,616   5,664,616 

  Investments in equity securities of Rs. 209.44 million (2016: Rs. 193.96 million) and investments in 
Government securities of Rs. 11.99 million (2016: Rs. 17.90 million) are not exposed to credit risk.             

              
27.1.1 Concentration of credit risk            
              
  Concentration of credit risk exists when the changes in economic or industry factors similarly affect groups 

of counterparties whose aggregate credit exposure is significant in relation to the Fund's total credit exposure. 
The Fund's portfolio of financial instruments is broadly diversified and all other transactions are entered into 
with credit-worthy counterparties thereby mitigating any significant concentrations of credit risk.            

              
  Details of Fund's concentration of credit risk of financial instruments by industrial distribution is as follows:            

2017 2016

Rupees Percentage Rupees Percentage

Banking companies      3,434,323  73.63%  4,591,060  84.19%
Connected persons      883,874  18.95%  499,677  9.16%
Others       346,292  7.42%  362,516  6.65%
       4,664,489  100%  5,453,253  100%

 Settlement risk            
              
 The Fund's activities may give rise to risk at the time of settlement of transactions. Settlement risk is the risk of loss 

due to the failure of an entity to honor its obligations to deliver cash, securities or other assets as contractually 
agreed.            

              
 For the vast majority of transactions the Fund mitigates its risk by conducting settlements through a broker to ensure 

that a trade is settled only when both parties have fulfilled their contractual settlement obligations.            
              
27.1.1(a) Counterparties with external credit ratings            
              
 These include banking companies and financial institutions, which are counterparties to cash deposits. These are 

neither past due nor impaired. Credit risk is considered minimal since the counterparties have reasonably high 
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credit ratings as determined by various credit rating agencies. Due to long standing business relationships with 
these counterparties and considering their strong financial standing, management does not expect non-
performance by these counterparties on their obligations to the Fund. Following are the credit ratings of 
counterparties with external credit ratings:            

              
 Banks and financial institutions

Bank Rating Rating 2017 2016
Long Term Short Term Agency Rupees Rupees

Bank balances including profit receivable            
            
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited   AA+ A1+ PACRA  3,394,778   4,567,842 
NIB Bank Limited    AA- A1+ PACRA  23,240   23,218 
          3,418,018   4,591,060  

27.2 Liquidity risk            
              
 Liquidity risk is the risk that the Fund will encounter difficulty in meeting its financial obligations as they fall due. 

Liquidity risk arises because of the possibility that the Fund could be required to pay its liabilities earlier than 
expected or difficulty in raising funds to meet commitments associated with financial liabilities as they fall due.            

              
 The Fund is exposed to cash redemption of its units on a regular basis. Units are redeemable at the holder's option 

based on the Fund's net asset value per unit at the time of redemption calculated in accordance with the Fund's 
constitutive document and guidelines laid down by SECP.            

              
 Management of liquidity risk            
              
 The Fund's approach to managing liquidity is to ensure, as far as possible, that the Fund will always have sufficient 

liquidity to meet its liabilities when due under both normal and stressed conditions, without incurring unacceptable 
losses or risking damage to the Fund's reputation. Its policy is therefore to invest the majority of its investments in 
marketable securities, which under normal circumstances are readily convertible into cash. As a result may be able 
to liquidate its investments in these instruments at an amount close to their fair value to meet its liquidity 
requirement. The present settlement is a T+2 system, which means proceeds from sales (to pay of redemptions) of 
holdings will be received on the second working day after the sale, while redemptions have to be paid within a 
period of six working days from the date of redemption request.            

              
 In order to manage the Fund's overall liquidity, the Fund may also withhold daily redemption requests in excess of 

ten percent of the units in issue and such requests would be treated as redemption requests qualifying for being 
processed on the next business day. Such procedure would continue until the outstanding redemption requests 
come down to a level below ten percent of the units then in issue. However, the Fund did not withhold any 
redemption requests during the year.            

              
 Maturity analysis for financial liabilities            
              
 The table below indicates the contractual maturities of the Fund's financial liabilities at the reporting date. The 

amounts in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows as on :
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2017

Financial
liabilities

Up to three
months

More than three
months and

up to one year

 Total 

RupeesNote

Non-derivative financial liabilities            
            
Remuneration payable to the Management  
Company (excluding Punjab 
 Sales Tax and FED)    8   1,162,973   1,162,973   -     1,162,973 
            
Remuneration payable to Trustee (excluding           
Sindh Sales tax)   9   57,534   57,534   -     57,534 
Annual fee payable to SECP  11   207,043   207,043   -     207,043 
Unclaimed dividend     11,672,004   11,672,004   -     11,672,004
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 12   773,340   773,340   -     773,340 
       13,872,894   13,872,894   -    13,872,894 

2016

Financial
liabilities

Up to three
months

More than three
months and

up to one year

 Total 

RupeesNote

Non-derivative financial liabilities            
            
Remuneration payable to the Management             
Company (excluding Punjab
 Sales Tax and FED)    8   316,360   316,360   -     316,360 
Remuneration payable to Trustee (excluding             
Sindh Sales tax)   9   57,377   57,377   -  57,377 
Annual fee payable to SECP  11   190,561   190,561   -     190,561 
Unclaimed dividend     9,796,624   9,796,624   -     9,796,624 
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 12   766,663   766,663   -    766,663 
       11,127,585   11,127,585   -     11,127,585 

27.3 Market risk            
              
 Market risk is the risk that the change in fair value or the future cash flows of a financial instrument may fluctuate 

as a result of changes in market prices. The objective of market risk management is to manage and control market 
risk exposures within acceptable parameters, while optimizing return.            

              
 Management of market risk            
              
 The Management Company manages the market risk through diversification of the investment portfolio by 

exposures and by following the internal guidelines established by the investment committee and regulations laid 
down by the SECP.            

              
 Market risk comprises of three types of risks: currency risk, interest rate risk and other price risk.             
              
27.3.1 Currency risk            
              
 Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of 

changes in foreign exchange rates. The Fund, at present, is not exposed to currency risk as all transactions are 
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carried out in Pak Rupees.            
              
27.3.2 Interest rate risk            
              
 Interest rate risk represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 

because of changes in market interest rates. The Investment Committee of the Fund reviews the portfolio of the 
Fund on a regular basis to ensure that the risk is managed with in the acceptable limits.            

              
 a) Sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments           
              
 Presently, the Fund holds balances with banks which expose the Fund to cash flows interest rate risk. In case of 

100 basis points increase / decrease in market rates as at 30 June 2017 with all other variables held constant, the 
net income for the year and net assets would have been higher / lower by Rs. 0.034 million  (2016: Rs. 0.046 
million).           

              
 b) Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments           
              
 As at 30 June 2017 the Fund holds market treasury bills which are classified as financial assets at fair value 

through profit or loss exposing the Fund to fair value interest rate risk. In case of 100 basis points increase / 
decrease in rates announced by Financial Markets Association of Pakistan for market treasury bills as on 30 June 
2017 with all other variables held constant, the net income for the year and net assets would have been lower / 
higher by Rs. 0.0167 million (2016: Rs. 0.0167 million).           

              
27.3.3 Other price risk            
              
 Other price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result 

of changes in market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk) whether those 
changes are caused by factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all 
similar financial instruments traded in the market.            

              
 The Fund is exposed to equity price risk because of investments held by the Fund in listed equity securities 

classified on the Statement of Assets and Liabilities as 'at fair value through profit or loss'. To manage its price risk 
arising from investments in equity securities, the Fund diversifies its portfolio within eligible stocks. The Fund's 
constitutive document / the NBFC Regulations also limit individual equity securities to no more than 10% of net 
assets of the Fund, or issued capital of the investee company and sector exposure limit to 30% of net assets.            

              
 Fair value sensitive analysis            
              
 In case of 5% increase / decrease in the KSE 100 index, net income for the year ended 30 June 2017 would 

increase / decrease by Rs. 10.41 million (2016: Rs. 9.72 million) and net assets of the Fund would increase / 
decrease by the same amount as a result of gains / losses on equity securities classified at fair value though profit 
or loss.            

              
 The analysis is based on the assumption that the equity index had increased / decreased by 5% with all other 

variables held constant and all the Fund's equity instruments moved according to the historical correlation with 
the index. This represents management's best estimate of a reasonable possible shift in KSE 100 Index having 
regard to historical volatility of the index. The composition of the Fund's investment portfolio and the correlation, 
thereof, to the KSE 100 Index is expected to change over time. Accordingly, the sensitivity analysis prepared as of 
30 June 2017 is not necessarily indicative of the effect on the Fund's net assets of future movements in the level of 
the KSE 100 index.            

              
28 Unit holder's fund risk management             
              
 The Fund's capital is represented by the net assets attributable to unit holders / redeemable units. The unit holders 

of the Fund are entitled to distributions and to payment of  a proportionate share based on the Fund's net asset 
value per unit on the redemption date. The relevant movements are shown on the statement of movement in unit 
holder's fund.             

              
 The Fund has no restrictions or specific funding requirements on the subscription and redemption of units.             
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 The Fund's objectives when managing unit holder's fund are to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern 
so that it can continue to provide returns to unit holders and to maintain a strong base of assets to meet unexpected 
losses or opportunities.             

              
 In accordance with the risk management policies, the Fund endeavors to invest the subscriptions received in 

appropriate investments while maintaining sufficient liquidity to meet redemption requests. Such liquidity being 
augmented by disposal of investments where necessary.              

              
 As required under the NBFC Regulations, every open end scheme shall maintain minimum fund size (i.e. net 

assets of the Fund) of Rs. 100 million at all times during the life of scheme. The Fund has maintained and 
complied with the requirements of minimum fund size during the year.

29 Fair value measurement of financial instruments           
            
 Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction 

between market participants at the measurement date.           
            
 Fair value of underlying financial assets are determined based on requirement of regulation 66(a) of Non-

Banking Finance Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 and directives if any issued by SECP. The 
fair value of financial assets traded in active market i.e. listed securities are based on quoted market price at stock 
exchange as determined in accordance with its regulations.           

            
 IFRS 13 'Fair Value Measurement' requires the Fund to classify fair value measurements and fair value hierarchy 

that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the measurements of fair value hierarchy has the 
following levels:           

            
  - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1)          

  - Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either 
directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices) (level 2)          

            
  - Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (i.e. unobservable) inputs 

(Level 3)          
            
 Transfer between levels of the fair value hierarchy are recognised at the end of the reporting period during which 

the changes have occurred.           
            
 The following table shows the carrying amounts and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities, 

including their levels in the fair value hierarchy. It does not include fair value information for financial assets and 
financial liabilities not measured at fair value if the carrying amount is a reasonable approximation of fair value.          
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ap

ital M
u

tu
al Fu

n
d

Rupees

As at 30 June 2017
Fair value through

profit or loss

Carrying amount Fair value

Financial assets - measured at fair value           

           

Investments          

- listed equity securities 5.1  209,467,908   -     -     209,467,908   209,467,908   -     209,467,908 

- Government securities 5.2  11,990,208   -     -     11,990,208   -     11,990,208   11,990,208 

           

Financial assets - not measured at fair value           

           

Bank balances  4  -     3,418,018   -     3,418,018   -     -     -   

Dividend and profit receivable 6  -     362,597   -     362,597   -     -     -   

Deposits and other receivables 7  -     883,874   -     883,874   -     -     -   

   221,458,116   4,664,489   -     226,122,605   209,467,908   11,990,208   221,458,116 

           

Financial liabilities - not measured at fair value           

           

Remuneration payable to Management Company 8.1  -     -     1,162,973   1,162,973   -     -     -   

Remuneration payable to Trustee 10.1  -     -     57,534   57,534   -     -     -   

Annual fee payable to Securities and Exchange            

Commission of Pakistan 11  -     -     207,043   207,043    -     -     

-   

Accrued expenses and other liabilities 12  -     -     773,340   773,340   -     -     -   

Unclaimed dividend   -     -     11,672,005   11,672,005    -     -     

-      -     -     13,872,895   13,872,895   -     -     -   

Loans and
receivables

Other financial
liabilities

Total Level 1 Level 2 Total

Note

FC
M

F



As at 30 June 2016           

           

Financial assets - measured at fair value           

           

Investments           

- listed equity securities 5.1  193,963,633   -     -     193,963,633   193,963,633   -     193,963,633 

- unlisted equity securities   21,600   -     -     21,600   -     -     -   

- Government securities 5.2  17,901,954   -     -     17,901,954   -     17,901,954   17,901,954 

           

Financial assets - not measured at fair value           

           

Bank balances  4  -     4,570,869   -     4,570,869   -     -     -   

Dividend and profit receivable 6  -     382,707   -     382,707   -     -     -   

Deposits and other receivables 7  -     448,863   -     448,863   -     -     -   

   211,887,187   5,402,439   -     217,289,626   193,963,633   17,901,954   211,865,587 

           

Financial liabilities - not measured at fair value           

           

Remuneration payable to Management Company 8.1  -     -     316,360   316,360   -     -     -   

Remuneration payable to Trustee 10.1  -     -     57,377   57,377   -     -     -   

Annual fee payable to Securities and Exchange            

Commission of Pakistan 11  -     -     190,561   190,561   -     -     -   

Accrued expenses and other liabilities 12  -     -     766,663   766,663   -     -     -   

Unclaimed dividend   -     -     9,796,624   9,796,624   -     -     -   

   -     -     11,127,585   11,127,585   -     -     -  
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receivables

Other financial
liabilities

Total Level 1 Level 2 Total

Note
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For First Capital Investments Limited
(Management Company)

Chief Executive Director

30 Non-adjusting event after the reporting period             
              
 The Board of Directors of the Management Company in the meeting held on 03 October 2017 have approved a final 

distribution of Rs. 0.38 per unit (2016: Rs. 0.76) for the year ended 30 June 2017. The financial statements of the 
Fund for the year ended 30 June 2017 do not include the effect of this distribution which will be accounted for in the 
financial statements of the Fund for the year ending 30 June 2018.             

              
31 Date of authorization for issue             
              
 These financial statements were authorized for issue on 03 October 2017 by the Board of Directors of the 

Management Company.             
              
32 General             
              
 Figures have been rounded off to the nearest rupee.
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PERFORMANCE TABLE

       2017 2016 2015 2014

FCMF

Net assets (Rupees)     208,147,579   194,363,218   264,232,211   312,425,952 

Number of units     16,604,097   16,475,941   22,075,084   28,481,812 

Net asset value per unit (Rupees)   12.5359 11.7968  11.9697  10.9693

Redemption Price Per unit (Rupees)  12.5359 11.7968  11.9697  10.9693

Offer price per unit (Rupees)   12.7866 12.0327  12.2091  -

Highest redemption price per unit (Rupees)  14.9162 12.7562  12.9791  12.0222

Lowest redemption price per unit (Rupees)  11.7629 9.8409  10.2006  9.1101

Highest offer price per unit (Rupees)  15.2145 13.0113   13.2387   -   

Lowest offer price per unit (Rupees)  11.7629  10.0377   10.4046   -   

First Interim dividend distribution per unit (Rupees)  0.52   -  0.71 0.075

Second Interim dividend distribution per unit (Rupees)  -     -   -    0.06

Final dividend distribution per unit    0.38   0.76   0.91   - 

Distribution Date - First Interim Dividend  1-Mar-17  -  13-Mar-15 14-Feb-14

Distribution Date - Second Interim Dividend   -     -   -    25-Jun-14

Distribution Date - Final Dividend   3-Oct-17 30-Sep-16 5-Oct-15 

    

Distribution (%)    10.85% 7.60% 6.47% 12.64%

Capital growth (%)    6.27% -1.44% 9.12% 8.53%

Total return (%)    17.12% 6.16% 15.59% 21.16%

    

Disclaimer    

    

Past performance is not necessarily indicative of future performance and unit prices and    

investment returns may go down, as well as up.
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Individuals      1,943    4,016,526   50,350,834  24.19%
Associated companies / directors    6    11,449,228   143,526,575  68.95%
Retirement funds     2    15,893   199,228  0.10%
Public limited companies     2    940   11,783  0.01%
others      25    1,121,510   14,059,159  6.75%
Total      1,978  16,604,097   208,147,579  100.0%
    
    
14.1 Details of pattern of unit holding    
    

Individuals      1,943    4,016,526   50,350,834  24.19%
Associated companies / directors    6    11,449,228   143,526,575  68.95%
Banks and DFI's     5    20,199   253,219  0.12%
NBFC's      2    47,515   595,642  0.29%
Modarba      4    35,694   447,453  0.21%
Retirement funds     2    15,893   199,228  0.10%
Public limited companies     2    940   11,783  0.01%
Others      14    1,018,102   12,762,845  6.13%
Total      1,978    16,604,097   208,147,579  100.0%

June 30, 2017

Number of
unit holders

Units held
Investment

amount
Percentage

Rupees

Category

June 30, 2017

Number of
unit holders

Units held
Investment

amount
Percentage

Rupees

Category

   From  To   No. of Investors No. of Units

Less Then 1      13  7.9950 

    1 1000   1787  248,056.1331 

    1001 5000   106  216,262.1313 

    5001 10000   26  175,942.2267 

    10001 50000   38  914,414.1321 

    50001 100000   2  122,063.2400 

    100001 500000   3  707,839.9876 

    500001 1000000   0  -   

    1000001 5000000   2  3,108,595.8825 

    5000000 10000000   0  -   

    10000001 100000000   1  11,110,915.28 

   

   TOTAL     1978  16,604,097.0058 

FCMF
PATTERN OF UNIT HOLDING

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2017
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FCMFPATTERN OF UNIT HOLDING    
AS PER LISTING REGULATIONS AS AT 30 JUNE 2017    
    
Categories of Unitholders     No. of Unit holders Number of Units Held 
    
Associated Companies, undertakings and related parties    
FIRST CAPITAL EQUITIES LIMITED   1  1,793.1405 
FIRST CAPITAL SECURITIES CORPORATION LIMITED 1  335,315.6206 
Ms. FIRST CAPITAL INVESTMENTS LTD.   1  11,110,915.2775 
Mutual Funds    
    
    
    
Directors and their spouse(s) and minor children    
IMRAN HAFEEZ     1  586.8425 
MYRA HUSAIN QURESHI     1  15.3400 
NADEEM HUSSAIN     1  602.1825 
    
Executives    
    
    
    
Public Sector Companies and Corporations   15  16,832.5195 
    
    
Banks, development finance instituions, non-banking finance companies, 13  107,942.1075 
insurance companies, takaful, modarabas and pension funds    
    
    
    
Foreign Investor     1  1,013,568.1575 
    
    
    
Others      0  -   
    
    
General Public Local     1943  4,016,525.8177 

TOTAL      1978  16,604,097.0058 
    

Unit holders holding 5% or more    No. Unit holders  No. of Units 
    
FIRST CAPITAL INVESTMENTS LTD.   1  11,110,915.28 
SALMAN TASEER (LHR)     1  2,095,027.73 
SISLEY GROUP COMPANY LIMITED   1  1,013,568.16 


